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PARTI!
Item 1. Business.
Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
including, but not limited to, matters described in “Item 7 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and subject to the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements may contain words related to future projections including,
but not limited to, words such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “should,”
“could,” “would,” and variations of those words and similar words that are subject to risks, uncertainties
and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. Factors that
couid cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, the following: (1) variances
in the actual versus projected growth in assets; (2) retum on assets; (3) loan losses; (4) expenses; (5)
changes in the interest rate environment including interest rates charged on loans, earned on securities
investments and paid on deposits; (6) competition effects; (7) fee and other noninterest income earned; (8)
general economic conditions nationally, regionally, and in the operating market areas of the Bank; (%)
changes in the regulatory environment; (10) changes in business conditions and inflation; (11} changes in
securities markets; (12) data processing problems; (13) a decline in real estate values in the Bank’s
operating market areas; (14) the effects of terrorism, the threat of terrorism or the impact of the current
military conflicts in Afghanistar and Iraq and the conduct of the war on terrorism by the United States
and its allies, as well as other factors. The factors set forth under “Item 1A - Risk Factors” in this report
and other cautionary statements and information set forth in this report should be carefully considered and
understood as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements contained in this report, when
evaluating the business prospects of the Bank.

EL I

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of performance. By their nature, they involve
risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The future results and shareholder values may differ significantly
from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. You are cautioned not to put undue reliance on
any forward-looking statement. Any such statement speaks only as of the date of this report, and in the
case of any documents that may be incorporated by reference, as of the date of those documents. We do
not undertake any obligation to update or release any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to
report any new information, future event or other circumstances after the date of this report or to reflect
the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law. However, your attention is directed to
any further disclosures made on related subjects in our subsequent reports filed with the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency (hereinafter referred to as the “OCC”), on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K.

Introduction

Commerce National Bank, or the Bank, opened for business on December 17, 2003. Also on that
date, stock certificates for the shares of common stock subscribed for in the stock offering were issued
and distributed to the sharcholders. On February 28, 2005, the Board of Directors authorized a rights
offering and a secondary public offering of its common stock at $13.00 per share to raise an additional
$15,000,000, up to a maximum of $18,000,000. The purpose of the offering was to raise additional capital
to expand the services the Bank could provide to its customers. On Jaly 29, 2005, the Bank successfully
completed its rights offering and secondary public stock offering and sold 1,384,616 shares of its
common stock at $13.00 per share, for an aggregate sales price of $18,000,008.

The Bank and its operations are subject to federal and state laws applicable to national banks and
to the supervision of, and regular examination by, the OCC. The Bank is also a member of the Federal
Reserve System and its deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “FDIC”). The Bank has no holding company and no
subsidiaries. ' :



The Bank achieved significant growth in 2007, ending the year with assets totaling $205.8
million, an increase of $37.1 million, or 22.0 percent over December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007,

net loans totaled $119.1 million, total deposits equaled $176.8 miltion and total capital was $28.3 million. =

The net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $1,048,636 or $0.39 per basic and
diluted common share, compared to net income for the vear ended December 31, 2006 of $684,341 or
$0.26 per basic conumon share and $0.25 per diluted common share.

The Bank is a community bank conducting a general commercial banking business. On January
12, 2007, the Bank opened a new branch office at 4040 MacArthur Boulevard, Suite 100, Newport Beach,
California 92660, moved the loans and deposits from its Irvine branch to the Newport Beach location, and
closed the Irvine branch. The Bank then obtained shareholder and OCC approval to relocate its
headquarters office from its office located at 270 E. Orangethorpe Avenue, Fullerton, California 62832 to
its Newport Beach office. The Bank continues to operate a full service branch at its former main office
location in Fullerton,

The Bank’s telephone number at its headquarters office in Newport Beach is (949) 474-1020.
The telephone number at the Fullerton branch office is (714) 451-8650.

Bank Services

The Bank, as an independent community bank, offers a full range of commercial banking
services, primarily to the business and professional community and individuals located in and around
Orange County and neighboring communities.

The Bank offers a wide range of deposit instruments. These include personal and business
checking accounts and savings accounts, interest-bearing negotiable orders of withdrawal (“NOW™)
accounts, money market deposit accounts (“MMDA”), and time certificates of deposit (“TCD”). Most of
the Bank's deposits are attracted from small to medium-sized businesses and related sources, and from
individuals. The Bank may also hold, from time to time, significant amounts of deposits from the State of
California, or other public entities.

The Bank engages in a variety of lending activities, including commercial, Small Business
Administration (“SBA”), consumer, and real estate loans, with particular emphasis on short and medium
term obligations. Commercial lending activities are directed principally towards businesses whose
demand for funds falls within the Bank's lending }mit, such as small to medium-sized professional firms,
retail and wholesale outlets, and light manufacturing concerns. Consumer lending activities include loans
for automobiles, boats, recreation vehicles, home improvement, home equity, debt consolidation and
other personal needs. Real estate loans include both commercial real estate and construction loans.

The Bank also offers a wide range of specialized services designed to attract and service the
needs of commercial customers and account holders. These services include on-line banking, electronic
bill pay, automated teller machines (“ATM?”), cashier's checks, travelers' checks, foreign drafts and
Automated Clearing House (“ACH™) origination services. The Bank does not operate a Trust Department,
however, it makes arrangements with its correspondent bank to offer trust services to its customers on
reguest,

The majority of the Bank's business originates from within Orange County, California. The
Bank's business activities, loan and deposit demand, and liquidity levels are typically not seasonal.



Competition

The banking business in California, generally, and in the Bank's market area, in particular, is
--highly competitive with respect to both deposits and loans and is dominated by a relatively small number
of major banks, which have many offices operating over a wide geographic area. Among the advantages
that some of these institutions have over the Bank is their ability to undertake extensive advertising
campaigns and to allocate their investment assets to areas of highest yield and demand. The Bank
competes for deposits and loans, principally with these banks, as well as savings and loan associations,
thrift and loan associations, credit unions, mortgage companies, insurance companies, other financial
service institutions, and money market mutual funds,

In competing for deposits, the Bank is subject to cerfain limitations not applicabie to non-bank
financial institutions. Deregulation of interest rate ceilings payable on deposits has increased, and will
continue to increase, competition for deposits. In addition, other entities (both public and private) seeking
to raise capital through the issuance and sale of debt or equity securities will also compete with the Bank
for investment capital, which may otherwise be available for deposit into insured institutions.

Many of the major commercial banks operating in the Bank's market area offer certain services
such as trust services and international banking that the Bank does not offer directly. By virtue of their
greater total capitalization, such major banks have substantially higher lending limits than the Bank. Asa
national bank, the Bank is permitted to make loans to one person up to 15 percent of unimpaired capital
and unimpaired surplus if not fully secured by readily marketable collateral (real estate is not considered
readily marketable collateral}. Also, a national bank may lend an additional 10 percent of unimpaired
capital and unimpaired surplus to a person if fully secured by readily marketable coliateral. California
state-chartered banks are permitted to make unsecured loans in an amount up to 15 percent of their capital
including allowance for possible loan losses, and loans on a secured basis in an amount equal to 25
percent of their capital including allowance for possible loan loss, provided that all loans to any one
borrower, secured and unsecured, do not exceed the 25 percent limit. Savings and loan associations are
continuing to offer products and services, which compete with the products and services offered by
banking institutions, including the Bank. Independent banks also represent a significant competitive force.
In order to compete, the Bank relies vpon personal contacts by the officers, directors, and employees of
the Bank to establish and maintain relationships with customers. The Bank focuses its efforts on the
needs of professionals and small and medium-sized businesses.. In the event there are cusiomers whose
loan demands exceed the Bank's lending limit, the Bank seeks to arrange for such loans on a participation
basis with other financial institutions and intermediaries. The Bank also assists those customers requiring
other services not offered by the Bank by obtaining such services from its correspondent banks.

Management beleves that a portion of the Bank’s customer base derives from customers who
were dissatisfied with the level of service provided at larger financial institutions, While some customers
have followed officers of those institutions who were hired by the Bank, others were attracted by calling
programs of its officers and referrals from other customers. The Bank has sought, in the past, and intends
to continue in the future, to hire customer contact officers who have a history of establishing good
relationships with desirable customers. Hiring officers who have proven their ability to establish and
maintamn personal banking relationships, providing a high level of service, and earming referrals from
satisfied customers, form the basis of the Bank's competitive approach.

In the past, the principal competitors for deposits and loans have been other banks (particularly
major banks), savings and loan associations, and credit vmions. To a lesser extent, thrift and loan
companies, mortgage brokerage companies and insurance companies also have provided competition.
Both federal and state legislation in the 1980's have increased competition by expanding the authority of
savings and loan associations to make consumer and commercial loans. Legislation has eliminated all
interest rate differentials between banks and savings and loans, further increasing the ability of savings
and loans to compete with commercial banks and thrift and loan companies. In the past several years,
other financial intermediaries have begun to offer financial services traditionally offered by banks,



Institutions, such as brokerage houses and even retail establishments, also offer new investment vehicles
such as money-market funds.

Since 1982, federal legisiation has authorized certain financial institutions to pay money-market
interest rates on certain types of accounts. This has led to increased competition between financial
institutions and money-market funds and has increased the Bank's relative cost of funds. Within the
financial industry, the trend has been towards offering more varied services, such as discount brokerage
services, often through affiliate relationships. The direction of federal legislation seems to favor
competition between different types of financial institutions and to foster new entries into the financial
service market.

To compete with major financial institutions in its market area, the Bank relies upon specialized
services, local promotional activity, and personal contacts by its officers, directors and staff. The Bank
believes that the high quality of customer service and attention and the availability to customers of prompt
responses to lending requests is a contributing factor to the Bank's position in the area.

According to the Summary of Deposits issued by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as of
June 30, 2007, the most current data available, the Bank’s market area of Orange County, California, had
684 offices in its market area being operated by 105 depository institutions. The total deposits maintained
in these offices were $67.9 billion at June 30, 2007. Of these totals, the Bank kad two offices with a total
of $148.5 million in deposits, accounting for 0.22 percent of the market share in Orange County as of that
date. :

Supervision and Regulation

The following discussion of statutes and regulations affecting banks is only a summary and
does not purport to be complete. This discussion is qualified in its entirety by reference to such
statutes and regulations. No assurances can be given that such statutes and regulations will not
change in the future.

Various requirements and restrictions under federal and state laws affect our operations. Federal
regulations address several areas including loans, investments, mergers and acquisitions, borrowings,
dividends, and the number and locations of branch offices. Our deposits are insured up to the maximum
limits (presently $100,000 per account and $250,000 on certain retirement accounts) allowed by the
FDIC. As a result of this deposit insurance function, the FDIC has certain supervisory authority and
powers over FDIC-insured institutions. We are also subject to applicable provisions of California law if
not in conflict with, or preempted by federal law.

Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (“*OCC”)

As a nationally-chartered bank, we are regulated, supervised and regularly examined by the OCC,
the head of which is the Comptroller of the Currency (the “Comptroller”) who is appointed by the
President of the United States. The OCC’s supervisory and regulatory powers, which are similar, but nof
identical to, other federal banking regulations, are codified in Section ! of the National Bank Act. The
scope of the oversight and regulation responsibility of the OCC includes imposing minimum
capitalization requirements, placing limits on lending and on the distribution of shareholder dividends,
restricting affiliate transactions, and approving or denying approval for proposed bank sales, mergers,
consolidations and other change in control transactions. The OCC must also approve such actions as the
opening, closing or reiocation of branch offices, the use of ATMs and Internet banking, the sale of bank
securities, and the acquisition and disposition of real property.

As a national bank, we may generally make loans to one person up to 15 percent of unimpaired
capital and unimpaired surplus if not fully secured by readily marketable coliateral (real estate is not
considered readily marketable collateral). A national bank may lend an additional 10 percent of



unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus to a person if fully secured by readily marketable collateral.
Additionally, California law exempts banks, including national banks, from California usury law.

~ The Comptroller has all powers necessary or convenient for the administration and enforcement

of these and other statutory requirements, including the power to issue such rules and regulations as the
Comptroller may deem necessary or advisable in executing the powers, duties and responsibilities of the
OCC.

Impact of Monetary Policies

In general, Banking is a business dependent on interest rate spreads, which are the difference
between the interest rates paid by the bank on ifs deposits and other borrowings and the interest rate
earned by the bank on loans, securities and other interest-earning assets. The “spread” is the major source
of 2 bank’s earnings.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors which are beyond our control. Accordingty, cur
earnings and growth are subject to the influence of economic conditions generally, both domestic and
foreign, including inflation, recession, and unemployment, as well as to the influence of monetary and
fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies, particularly the Federal Reserve Board
(“FRB™).

The FRB implements national monetary policies, such as seeking to curb inflation and combat
recession, by its open-market dealings in U.S. government securities, by adjusting the required level of
reserves for financial institutions subiect to reserve requirements, by placing limitations upon savings and
time deposit interest rates, and through adjustments to the discount rate applicable to borrowings by banks
that are members of the Federal Reserve System. The actions of the FRB in these areas influence the
growth of bank loans, investments and deposits and also affect interest rates. The nature and timing of
any future changes in such policies and the impact of such changes on us cannot be predicted. However,
the impact on our nef interest margin, whether positive or negative, will depend on the degree to which
our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are rate sensitive. In addition, adverse economic
conditions could make a higher provision for loan losses a prudent course and couid cause higher loan
charge-offs, thus adversely affecting gur net income.

The Bank is subject to regulation, supervision and regular examination by the OCC. Each
depositor's account with the Bank is insured by the FDIC to the maximum amount permitted by law,
which is currently $100,000 for each insured deposit (and $250,000 on certain retirement accounts). The
Bank is also subject to certain regulations promulgaied by the FRB and applicable provisions of
California law, insofar as they do not conflict with or are not preempted by federal banking law.

Recent Legisiation

From time to time, legislation is enacted which has the effect of increasing the cost of doing
business, limiting or expanding permissible activities or affecting the competitive balance between banks
and other financial intermediaries. Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the operations
and taxation of banks, bank holding companies and other financial intermediaries are frequently made in
Congress, in the California legislature and before various bank regulatory and other professional agencies.
The likehhood of any major changes and the impact such changes might have on the Bank are impossible
to predict. Certain of the potentially significant changes which have been enacted, and proposals which
have been made recently are discussed below.

Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005

On February 8, 2006, President Bush signed into law The Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act
of 2005, or the FDI Reform Act. Some commentators have stated that the FDI Reform Act represents the



most significant reform in the deposit insurance system in decades. The FDI Reform Act (i) merges the
Bank Insurance Fund, or BIF, and the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or SAIF, with the new
combined fund to be called the Deposit Insurance Fund, or DIF, (ii) indexes the $100,000 insurance level
to reflect inflation (the first adjustment for inflation will be effective January 1, 2011 and thereafter
adjustments will occur every five years), (iii} increases deposit insurance coverage for retirement accounts
to $250,000, which will also be subject to the adjustment process every five years, (iv) offers credits to
banks that historically have capitalized the FDIC which can be used to offset premiums otherwise due
(this addresses the fact that institutions that have grown rapidly have not had to pay deposit premiums),
(v) imposes a cap on the level of the deposit insurance fund and provide for dividends when the fund
grows beyond a specified threshold, (vi) adopts the historical basis concept for distributing the
aforementioned one-time credit and dividends, and (vii) authorizes revisions to the current risk-based
system for assessing premiums.

On November 2, 2006, the FDIC adopted two final rules implementing the FDI Reform Act. One
rule creates a new system for risk-based assessments and sets assessment rates beginning January 1, 2007,
The other rule sets the designated reserve ratio, or DRR, at 1.25 percent. The new system for risk-based
assessment includes the following:

e Risk Categories. The existing nine assessment rate categories are consolidated into four new
categories. Risk Category 1, the lowest risk category, replaces the prior 1A risk category.

. Most Risk Category I Institutions. For most institutions within Risk Category I, assessment rates
will depend upon a combination of CAMELS component ratings and financial ratios.

» Large Risk Category I Institutions with Long-Term Debt Issuer Ratings. For large institutions in

Risk Category I that have long-term debt issuer ratings, assessment rates will depend upon these
ratings (50 percent} and CAMELS component ratings (50 percent).

. Rate Adjustments for Large Risk Category I Institutions. For large institutions within Risk
Category I, initial assessment rate determinations may be modified within limits upon review of
additional relevant information. In the near future, the FDIC plans to propose guidelines for
public comment on how adjustments will be made. No adjustments will be made before the
guidelines have been adopted. For assessment purposes, a large institution is one that has at least
310 billion in assets, but an institution that has between $5 billion and $10 billion in assets may
request treatment as a large institution for assessment purposes, subiect to FDIC approval.

. New Institutions. Until January 1, 2010, new institutions will be assessed as all other institutions
are assessed. Thereafter, subject to exceptions, new institutions (those less than five years old) in
Risk Category I will be assessed at the maximum rate applicable to that category. The exceptions
apply to certain institutions that result from mergers or consolidations that are owned by a
holding company for an older bank or thrift, that are directly owned by an older bank or thrift, or
that are converted credit unions.

¢ Base Assessment Rates. Base assessment rates will range from 2 to 4 basis points for Risk
Category [ institutions and will be 7 basis points for Risk Category Il institutions, 25 basis points
for Risk Category 11 institutions and 40 basis points for Risk Category IV institutions. The FDIC
may adjust rates without further notice-and-comment rulemaking, provided that no such
adiustment can be greater than three basis points from one quarter to the next that adjustments
cannot result in rates more than three basis points above or below the base rates, and that rates
cannot be negative,

. Assessment Rates. Effective January 1, 2007, the FDIC set assessment rates that are three basis
points above the base rates. Assessment rates will, therefore, range from 5 to 7 basis points for
Risk Category I institutions and will be 10 basis points for Risk Category II institutions, 28 basis
points for Risk Category III institutions and 43 basis points for Risk Category IV institutions.
Deposit insurance assessments will be in addition to FICQ assessments,

Based upon the current risk-based assessment rate schedule, the Bank’s current capital ratios and
levels of deposits, the Bank does not anticipate a significant increase in operating expenses due to the
assessment rate applicable to it during 2008 compared to 2007.



Check Clearing for the 21* Century Act

The Check Clearing for the 21% Century Act (commonly referred to as “Check 217) was signed
into law in 2003 and became effective on October 28, 2004, The law facilitates check truncation by
creating a new negotiable instrument called a “substitute check” which permits banks to truncate original
checks, to process check information electronically and to deliver “substitute checks™ to banks that want
to continue receiving paper checks. Check 21 is intended to reduce the dependence of the check payment
system on physical transportation networks (which can be disrupted by terrorist attacks of the type which
occurred on September 11, 2001) and to streamline the collection and return process. The law does not
require banks to accept checks in electronic form, nor does it require banks to use the new authority
granted by the Act to create “substitute checks.” The Bank does not currently anticipate that compliance
with the Act will have a material effect upon its financial position or results of its operations or its cash
flows.

Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act

In December 2003, President Bush signed into law the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act
(“FACT Act”) which sets new obligations for financial firms to help deter identity theft and give
consumers more control of their credit data, It also reauthorizes a federal ban on state laws that interfere
with corporate credit granting and marketing practices.

The Board of Governors, the FDIC, the other federal financial institution regulatory agencies, and
the Federal Trade Commission issued a joint press release on October 31, 2007, and final rules and
guidelines effective January 1, 2008, subject to mandatory compliance as of November 1, 2008,
implementing sections 114 and 315 of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 to require
financial institutions and other creditors to develop and implement a written identity theft prevention
program. The program must include reasonable policies and procedures for detecting, preventing, and
mitigating identity theft in connection with cerfain new and existing covered accounts. Covered accounts
are defined as (i) an account primarily for personal, family, or household purposes (i.e., consumer
accounts), or (ii} any other account for which there is a reasonably foreseeable risk to customers or the
safety and soundness of the financial institution or creditor from identity theft. The program must be
appropriate to the size and complexity of the financial institution or creditor and the nature and scope of
its activities and should be designed to:

. identify relevant patterns, practices, and specific forms of activity that are “red flags” of possible
identity theft and incorporate those red flags into the program;

. detect the occurrence of red flags incorporated into the program;
. respond appropriately to any red flags that are detected to prevent and mitigate identity theft; and
. ensure that the program is updated periodically to reflect changes in risks to customers or to the

safety and soundness of the financial institution or creditor from identity theft.

The regulations include guidelines that each financial institution must consider and, to the extent
appropriate, include in its program and steps that must be taken to administer the program including (i)
obtaining approval of the program by the board of directors or a committee of the board, (ii) ensuring
oversight of the development, implementation and administration of the program, (iii} training staff, and
(iv) overseeing service provider arrangements. The guidelines contemplate that existing fraud prevention
procedures may be incorporated into the program.
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In addition to legislative changes, the various Federal and state financial institution regulatory
agencies frequently propose rules and regulations to implement and enforce already existing legislation.

__ It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such rules or regulations will be enacted or the effect

that such regulations may have on the Bank.
Interagency Guidance on Response Programs to Protect Against Identity Theft

The federal bank and thrift regulatory agencies have issued a guidance requiring financial
institutions to develop programs to respond to incidents of unauthorized access to customer information,
including procedures for notifying customers under certain circumstances. The guidance:

. interprets previously issued interagency customer information security guidelines that require
financial institutions to implement information security programs designed to protect their
customers' information; and

» describes the components of a response program and sets a standard for providing notice to
customers affected by unauthorized access to or use of customer information that could result in
substantial harm or inconvenience to those customers, thereby reducing the risk of losses due to
frand or identity thefi.

Money Laundering and Currency Controls

Various federal statutory and regulatory provisions are designed to enhance record-keeping and
reporting of currency and foreign transactions. Pursuant to the Bank Secrecy Act, financial institutions
must report high levels of currency transactions or face the imposition of civil monetary penalties for
reporting violations. The Money Laundering Control Act imposes sanctions, including revocation of
federal deposit insurance, for institutions convicted of money laundering.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

On July 30, 2002, President Bush signed the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 into iaw. This Act
- addresses accounting oversight and corporate governance matters of companies whose securities are
registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“public companies™) and, therefore, does not
directly apply te the Bank. However, the OCC requires national banks, even those that are not public
companies, to comply with many of the requirements of Sarbanes-Osley on a “best practices” basis.
Among other things, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act:

. provides for the establishment of a five-member oversight board, known as the Public Bank
Accounting Oversight Board (the “PCAOB™), which is appointed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and that will set standards for and will have investigative and disciplinary powers
over accountants;

. prohibits accounting firms from providing various types of consulting services to their public
Bank clients and requires accounting firms to rotate partners among public Bank clients every
five years;

. increases the criminal penalties for financial crimes and securities fraud;

. expands disclosure of corporate operations and requires public companies to implement

disclosure controls and procedures designed to assure that material information regarding their
business and financial performance is included in the public reports they file under the Exchange
Act (“Exchange Act Reports™);

. requires the chief executive and chief financial officers of public companies to certify as to the
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accuracy and completeness of the Exchange Act Reports that their companies file, the financial
statements included in those Reports and the adequacy of their disclosure procedures and controls
and the adequacy and integrity of their internal controls;

. requires the directors of public companies that serve on audit committees to meet stringent
independence standards;

. requires public companies whose publicly traded securities have a value in excess of $75 million
to file their Exchange Act Reports on a more accelerated basis than is currently required;

. requires more expeditious reporting by directors and officers and other public Bank insiders
regarding their trading in Bank securities; and

. establishes statutory separations between investment banking firms and analysts.

The Bank has implemented disclosure controls and procedures and will take other actions to meet
the expanded disclosure requirements and certification requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
Additionally, the Bank has determined that the members of the Bank’s audit commitiee meet the
independence standards imposed by that Act. A number of the requirements under that Act will become
effective during fiscal 2008.

The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. (“NASDAQ™) has also adopted more than 25 new corporate
governance rules which apply to companies that list their securities with NASDAQ (the “NASDAQ
Corporate Governance Rules™). These rules are intended to enable shareholders and prospective investors
to more easily and efficiently monitor the performance of companies and directors. In anticipation of the
possible future listing of the Bank’s common stock with NASDAQ, the Bank is in the process of
evaluating and adopting policies that are consistent with the NASDAQ Corporate Governance Rules.

The USA PATRIOT Act

After the September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks, the United States government acted in several
ways to tighten control on activities perceived to be connected to money laundering and terrorist funding.
A series of orders were issued which identify terrorists and terrorist organizations and require the
blocking of property and assets of, as well as prohibiting all transactions or dealings with, such terrorists,
terrorist organizations and those that assist or sponsor them.

The USA Patriot Act, signed into law by President Bush on October 26, 2001, substantially
broadens existing anti-money laundering legisiation and the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the United
States, imposes new compliance and due diligence obligations, creates new crimes and penalties, compels
the production of documents Jocated both inside and outside the United States, including those of foreign
institutions that have a correspondent relationship in the United States, and clarifies the safe harbor from
civil liability to customers. In addition, the United States Treasury Department issued regulations in
cooperation with the federa] banking agencies, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission and the Department of Justice to require customer identification and
verification, expand the money-laundering program requirement to the major financial services sectors,
including insurance and uuregistered investment companies, such as hedge funds, and facilitate and
permit the sharing of information between law enforcement and financial institutions, as well as among
financial institutions themselves. The United States Treasury Department also has created the Treasury
USA PATRIOT Act Task Force to work with other financial regulators, the regulated community, law
enforcement and consumers to continually improve the regulations.

The USA Patriot Act has had a significant effect upon the federal laws affecting the banking
industry, including amendments to, among other federal statutes, the Computer Fraud and Abuse Act, the
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Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Act, the Money Laundering Act, the Money Laundering Control Act,
the Bank Secrecy Act, the Right to Financial Privacy Act and the Fair Credit Reporting Act.

It is not anticipated that the USA Patriot Act will have a significant impact on the financial
condition or results of operations of the Bank.

International Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Apti-Terrorism Act of 2001

The International Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-Terrorism Act of 2001, or
IMILAFATA, a part of the Patriot Act, authorizes the Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with the
heads of other government agencies, to adopt special measures applicable to banks and other financial
institutions to enhance record-keeping and reporting requirements for certain financial transactions that
are of primary money laundering concem. Among its provisions, IMLAFATA requires each financial
institution to (i) establish and anti-laundering program; (ii) establish due diligence policies, procedures
and controls with respect to its private banking accounts and correspondent banking accounts involiving
individuals and certain foreign banks; and (iii) avoid establishing, maintaining, administering, or
managing correspondent accounts in the United States for, or on behalf of, a foreign bank that does not
have a physical presence in any counfry. In addition, IMLAFATA contains a provision encouraging
cooperation among financial institutions, regulatory authorities and law enforcement authorities with
respect to individuals, entities and organizations engaged in, or reasonably suspected of engaging in,
terrorist acts or money laundering activities.

The Treasury Department regulations implementing IMLAFATA mandate that federally-insured
banks and other financial institutions establish customer identification programs designed to verify the
identity of persons opening new accounts, maintain the records used for verification, and determine
whether the person appears on any list of known or saspected terrorists or terrorist organizations.

Regulatory Advisory on Brokered and Rate-Sensitive Deposits

On May 11, 2001, the federal banking regulators issued an advisory reminding bankers and
examiners of the potential risks associated with excessive reliance on brokered and other highly rate-
sensitive deposits. These deposits may include those obtained through the internet, certificate of deposit
listing services, and similar advertising programs. The agencies stated that while they believe these
deposits can be, and often are, beneficial to banks if prudenily managed, without proper monitoring and
management, they might be an unstable source of funding for an institution. The advisory reminds
bankers that under the agencies’ safety and scundness standards, a bank’s asset growth should be prudent
and its management must consider the source, volatility and use of the funds generated to support asset
growth. The advisory states that the agencies expect bank management to implement risk management
systems commensurate in complexity with the liquidity and funding risks undertaken.

Protection of Customer Information

On February 1, 2001, the federal banking regulators issued final regulations implementing the
provisions of Gramm-Leach relating to the protection of customer information, The effective date of these
regulations was July 1, 2001. The regulations establish administrative, technical, and physical safeguards
for customer records and information. These safeguards are intended to: insure the security and
confidentiality of customer records and information; protect against any anticipated threats or hazards to
the security or integrity of such records; and protect against unauthorized access to or use of such records
or information that could result in substantial harm or inconvenience to any customer,

Financial Services Modernization Legislation

The Financial Services Modernization Act, which also is known as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act
(*Gramm-Leach™), was enacted into law in 1999. The principal objectives of that Act are to establish a
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comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks, insurance companies,
securities and investment banking firms, and other financial service providers by revising and expanding
the Bank Holding Company Act to permit a holding company system, meeting certain specified
_.qualifications, to engage in broader range of financial activities, primarily through wholly-owned
subsidiaries, and, thereby, to foster greater competition among financial services companies. To
accomplish those objectives, among other things, the Act repealed the two affiliation provisions of the
(lass-Steagall Act that had been adopted in the early 1930°s during the Depression: Section 20, which
restricted the affiliation of banks with firms “engaged principally” in specified securities activities; and
Section 32, which restricted officer, director, or employee interlocks between a bank and any Bank or
person “primarily engaged™ in specified securities activities. The Financial Services Modemization Act
also contains provisions that expressly preempt any state law restricting the establishment of financial
affiliations, primarily related to insurance. That Act also:

¢ broadens the activities that may be conducted by national banks, banking subsidiaries of bank
holding companies, and their financial subsidiaries;

. provides an enhanced framework for protecting the privacy of consumer information;

. adopts a number of provisions related to the capitalization, membership, corporate governance,
and other measures designed to modemize the Federal Home Loan Bank system;

. modifies the laws governing the implementation of the Comumunity Reinvestment Act {which is
described in greater detail below); and

. addresses a variety of other legal and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day operations and
long-term activities of financial institutions.

A bank hoiding company that qualifies and elects to become a financial holding company may
affiliate with securities firms and insurance companies and engage in other activities that are financial in
nature or are incidental or complementary 1o activities that are financial in nature. According to current
Federal Reserve Board regulations, activities that are financial in natare and may be engaged in by
financial holding .companies include: securities underwriting; dealing and market making; sponsoring
mutual funds and investment companies and engaging in insurance underwriting and brokerage; and
engaging in merchant banking activities,

A bank holding company that is not also a financial holding company may not engage in such
financial activities. Instead, as discussed above, it is limited to engaging in banking and such other
activities as determined by the Federal Reserve Board (o be as closely related to banking or managing or
controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto.

The Bank does not believe that the Financial Services Modernization Act will have a material
effect on its operations, at least in the near-term. However, fo the extent that it enables banks, securities
firms, and insurance companies to affiliate, the financial services industry may experience further
consolidation. Additionally, the Act may have the result of increasing the level of competition that the
Bank faces from larger institutions and other types of companies offering diversified financial products,
many of which may have substantially greater financial resources than the Bank has,

Privacy Provisions of the Financial Services Modernization Act

As required by the Financial Services Modemization Act, federal banking regulators have
adopted rules that limit the ability of banks and other financial institutions to disclose nonpublic
information about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties. Pursuant to the rules, financial institutions
must provide:

. initial notices to customers about their privacy policies, describing the conditions under which
they may disclose non-public personal information to non-affiliated third parties and affiliates;
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. annual notices of their privacy policies to current customers; and

. a reasonable method for customers to “opt out” of disclosures to nonaffiliated third parties.
Interstate Banking and Branching Legislation

Pursuant to the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the
“Interstate Banking and Branching Act™), which became effective September 29, 1993, a bank holding
company may acquire banks in states other than its home state, without regard to the permissibility of
such acquisition under state law, but subject to any state requirement that the bank has been organized and
operating for a minimum period of time, not to exceed five years, and the requirement that the bank
holding company, prior to or following the proposed acquisition, controls no more than 10 percent of the
total amount of deposits of insured depository institutions in the United States and no more than
30 percent of such deposits in that state (or such lesser or greater amount set by state law).

The Interstate Banking and Branching Act also authorized banks to merge across state lines,
thereby creating interstate branches. Under such legislation, each state had the opportunity either to “opt
owt” of this provision, thereby prohibiting interstate branching in such states, or to “opt in”. The State of
Califormia elected to “opt in” to such legislation. Furthermore, pursuant to the Interstate Banking and
Branching Act, a bank is now able to open new branches in a state in which it does not already have
banking operations, if the laws of such state permit such de novo branching.

Capital Standards Under FDICIA

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA™), among other
things, identifies five capital categories for insured depository institutions (well capitalized, adequately
capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and eritically undercapitalized) and requires
the respective federal regulatory agencies to implement systems for “prompt corrective action” for
insured depository institutions that do not meet minimum capital requirements within such categories.
FDICIA imposes progressively more restrictive constraints on operations, management and capital
distributions, depending on the category in which an institution is classified. Failure to meet the capital
guidelines could also subject a banking institution to capital raising requirements. In addition, pursuant to
FDICIA, the various regulatory agencies have prescribed certain non-capital standards for safety and
soundness relating generally to operations and management, asset quality and executive compensatiorn,
and such agencies may take action against a financial institution that does not meet the applicable
standards.

‘The various regulatory agencies have adopted substantially similar regulations that define the five
capital categories identified by FDICIA, using the Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital
and Leverage Capital Ratios as the relevant capital measures. Such regulations establish various degrees
of corrective action to be taken when an institution is considered undercapitalized. Under the regulations,
a “well capitalized” institution must have a Tier 1 Capital ratio of at least 6.00 percent, a Total Capital
ratio of at least 10.00 percent and a Leverage ratio of at least 5.00 percent and not be subject to a capital
directive order. An “adequately capitalized” institution must have a Tier 1 Capital ratio of at least
4.00 percent, a Total Capital ratio of at least 8.00 percent and a Leverage ratio of at least 4.00 percent, or
3.00 percent in some cases.

Banking agencies have also adopted regulations which mandate that regulators take into
consideration (i) concentrations of credit risk, (ii) interest rate risk (when the interest rate sensitivity of an
institution’s assets does not match the sensitivity of its liabilities or its off-balance sheet position) and
(ii1) risks from non-traditional activities, as well as an institution’s ability to manage those risks, when
determining the adequacy of an institution’s capital. This evaluation is made as a part of the institution’s
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regular safety and soundness examination. In addition, the banking agencies have amended their
regulatory capital guidelines to incorporate a measure for market risk. In accordance with amended
guidelines, a bank with significant trading activity (as defined in the amendment) must incorporate a
measure for market risk in its regulatory capital calculations,

State and federal bank regulators responsible for supervising banks retain great discretion in
determining whether and to what extent any bank meets applicable capital requirements through the
examination process. The regulators determine and verify the amount of capital an institution has after
examining its financial condition and operations, including, among other things, the quality of its loan
portfolio and other assets, the adequacy of its reserves against loan losses, the cost of its deposits, the
bank's exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and other risks attendant to the operations of the bank.
The regulators are also charged by applicable law with developing and promulgating regulations
governing the standards for the adequacy of a bank's capital. For example, the FDIC is currently
considering proposals to increase minimum capital requirements for financial institutions which
specialize in financing riskier credits, such as so-called “sub-prime” mortgages and automobile contracts.
Such dependency on supervisory discretion of the regulatory agencies is inherent in highly regulated
businesses, such as banking.

The following table sets forth the regulatory capital guidelines and the actual capitalization levels
for the Bank as of December 31, 2007:

Capital Standard é:;‘ilt!;fiﬁg g‘;ﬂitalized S ;::Iilo!zgcl;ank
(greater than or equal to)

Total risk-based capital ratio 8.00% 10.00% 21.0%

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 4.00% 6.00% 19.9%

Tier 1 leverage capital ratio 4.00% 5.00% 13.3%

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank was considered *“well-capitalized” under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action.

- Risk Management of Technology Outsourcing

Federal regulators, through the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (the
“FFIEC”), have issued guidance for institutions on management issues when using outsourced
technology, including risk assessment, service provider selection, comtract terms and oversight of
outsourcing arrangements. The FFIEC guidelines state that the first stop to be used by management is
risk assessment, noting that special attention should be given to use of the internet. Once the potential
risks have been identified and assessed, management should perform due diligence in evaluating potential
service providers in order to determine if they can meet the needs of the institution on both an operational
ané financial level. The FFIEC guidelines describe a comprehensive Hist of factors to consider in this due
diligence phase. The guidelines then describe the issues of importance in coniract negotiation and the
controls that shouid be made a part of the contract. The FFIEC stresses that internet-related services
require special attention to security issues and suggests independent audit by a third party with sufficient
expertise. Finally, the institution needs to implement a program to monitor the performance of each
vendor, including its controls and financial condition.

Predatory Lending

The term “predatory lending,” much like the terms “safety and soundness” and “unfair and
deceptive practices,” is far-reaching and covers a potentially broad range of behavior. As such, it does
not lend itself to a concise or a comprehensive definition, but typically predatory lending involves at least
one, and perhaps all three, of the following elements:
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. making unaffordable loans based on the assets of the borrower rather than on the borrower's
ability to repay an obligation (“asset-based lending”);

® inducing a borrower to refinance a loan repeatedly in order to charge high points and fees each
time the loan is refinanced (“loan flipping™); and

® engaging in fraud or deception to conceal the true nature of the loan obligation from an
unsuspecting or unsophisticated borrower.

Federal Reserve Board regulations aimed at curbing such lending significantly widened the pool
of high-cost home-secured loans covered by the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994, a
federal law that requires extra disclosures and consumer protections to borrowers. The following triggers
coverage under the Act:

* interest rates for first lien mortgage loans in excess of 8 percentage points above comparable
Treasury securities,

. subordinate-lien loans of 10 percentage points above Treasury securities, and

® fees such as optional insurance and simijar debt protection costs paid in connection with the
credit transaction, when combined with points and fees if deemed excessive.

In addition, the regulation bars loan flipping by the same lender or loan servicer within a year.
Lenders also will be presumed to have violated the law—which says loans shouldn't be made to people
unable to repay them—unless they document that the borrower has the ability to repay. Lenders that
violate the rules face cancellation of ioans and penalties equal to the finance charges paid.

The Bank does not expect these rules and potential state action in this area to have a material
impact on the Bank's financial condition or results of operation.

Community Reinvestment Act

The Bank is also subject to the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA™). The CRA generally
requires the federal banking agencies to evaluate the record of a financial institution in meeting the needs
of local communities, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. In addition to substantive
penalties and corrective measures that may be required for a violation of certain fair lending laws, the
federal banking agencies may take compliance with such laws and CRA into account when regulating and
supervising other activities, and in evaluating whether to approve applications for permission to engage in
new activities or for acquisitions of other banks or companies. An unsatisfactory rating may be the basis
for denying the application. Based on the most current regulatory review of the Bank’s compliance with
the requirements of the CRA, the Bank was rated “satisfactory.”

Future Legislation

Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the banking industry are frequently
introduced in Congress, in the state legislatures and before the various bank regulatory agencies. The
likelihood and timing of any such proposals or bills being enacted and the impact they might have on the
Bank cannot be determined at this time.

Federal Reserve System
Federal Reserve regulations, as presently in effect, require depository institutions {0 maintain

non-interest earning reserves against their {ransaction accounts (primarily NOW and reguiar checking
accounts) and non-personal time deposits. The reserve balance required to be maintained at the Federal
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Reserve Bank of San Francisco (“FRB”) was $774,000 and $400,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The Bank, as a member of the FRB and the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™) systems, is
required to maintain investments in the capital stock of the FHLB and FRB. No ready market exists for
these stocks and they have no quoted market value. The aggregate cost of such stock together with other
equity investments of the Bank, was $1.3 million and $1.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Limitations on Dividends

The Bank's sharcholders are entitled to receive dividends when and as declared by its board of
directors, out of funds legally available there for, subject to the restrictions set forth in the National Bank
Act.

The payment of cash dividends by the Bank may be subject to the approval of the OCC, as well
as restrictions established by federal banking law and the FDIC. Approval of the OCC is required if the
total of all dividends declared by the Bank's board of directors in any calendar year will exceed the Bank's
net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years, less any
required transfers fo surplus or to a fund for the retirement of preferred stock. Additionally, the FDIC or
the OCC might, under some circumstances, place restrictions on the ability of a bank to pay dividends
based upon peer group averages and the performance and maturity of that bank.

To date, the Bank has not paid any dividends to its shareholders.
Employees

At December 31, 2007, the Bank employed 32 full-time employees. The Bank believes that its
employee relations are positive.

Item 1A, Risk Factors.

The Bank conducts business in an environment that includes certain risks described below which
could have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s business, results of operations, financial condition,
future prospects and stock price. You are also referred to the matters described under the heading
“Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” in Part I, Item 1 and Part I, Item 7 of
this report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding factors that may affect the Bank’s business.

¢ The Bank’s business is subject to interest rate risk, and variations in interest rates may negatively
affect its financial performance.

Changes in the interest rate environment may increase or decrease the Bank’s net interest income.
It is expected that the Bank will continue o realize income from the differential or “spread” between the
interest eamed on loans, securities and other interest-earning assets, and the interest paid on deposits,
borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities. The amount of spread is dependent upon many factors,
including the level of market interest rates, changes in market interest rates, the mix and the
characteristics of the Bank’s loans and investments, and the mix and characteristics of the Bank’s deposits
ané other borrowings. Net interest spreads are affected by the difference between the maturities and re-
pricing characteristics of interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing liabilities. In addition, loan balances,
volumes and yields are affected by market interest rates, and rising interest rates generally are associated
with a lower volume of loan originations. Conversely, while falling interest rates can be associated with
increasing loan volumes, falling rates can also increase the incentive for borrowers to refinance existing
loans into lower rate products, which can reduce yields for the Bank. In addition, an increase in the
general level of interest rates may adversely affect the ability of certain borrowers to pay the interest on
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and principal of their obligations. Accordingly, changes in levels of market interest rates could materially
and adversely affect the Bank’s net interest spread, asset guality, loan origination volume and overall
profitability.

Governmental monetary policies affect the Bank’s business and are bevond the control of the Bank.

The business of banking is affected significantly by the fiscal and monetary policies of the federal
government and its agencies. Such policies are beyond the control of the Bank. The Bank is particularly
affected by the policies established by the Board of Governors in relation to the supply of money and
credit in the United States. The instruments of monetary policy available to the Board of Governors can
be used in varying degrees and combinations to directly affect the availability of bank loans and deposits,
as well as the interest rates charged on loans and paid on deposits, and this can and does have a material
effect on the Bank’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

¢ The Bank faces strong competition from banks, financial service companies and other
companies that offer banking services, which couid adversely affect the Bank’s business.

Increased competition in the Bank’s marketplace may resuit i reduced loans and deposits,
Ultimately, the Bank may not be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors.
Many competitors offer the banking services that are offered by the Bank in its service area. These
competitors include national and super-regional banks, finance companies, investment banking and
brokerage firms, credit unions, government-assisted farm credit programs, other community banks and
technology-oriented financial institutions offering online services. In particular, the Bank’s competitors
include several major financial companies whose greater resources may afford them a marketpiace
advantage by enabling them to maintain numercus banking locations and mount extensive promotional
and advertising campaigns. Additionally, banks and other financial institutions with larger capitalization
and financial intermediaries not subiect to bank regulatory restrictions have larger lending limits and are
thereby able to serve the credit needs of larger customers. Areas of competition include interest rates for
loans and deposits, efforts to obtain deposits, and range and quality of products and services provided,
including new technology-driven products and services. Technological innovation continues to contribute
to greater competition in domestic and international financial services markets as technological advances,
such as Internet-based banking services that cross traditional geographic bounds, enable more companies
to provide financial services. If the Bank is unable to attract and retain banking customers, it may be
unable to continue its loan growth and ievel of deposits, which may adversely affect its resuits of
operations, financial condition and future prospects.

*  Worsening economic conditions in Southern California could adversely affect the Bank’s
business.

The Bank conducts banking operations principally in Orange County and the counties
surrounding Orange County. As a result, the Bank’s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows are subject to changes in the economic conditions in Scuthern California. The Bank’s business
results are dependent in large part upon the business activity, population, income ievels, deposits and real
estate activity in Southern California, and adverse economic conditions could have adverse effects upon
the Bank. The State of California is currently experiencing significant budgetary and fiscal difficulties.
The Bank can provide no assurance that conditions in the California economy will not deteriorate or that
such deterioration will not adversely affect the Bank. Deterioration in economic conditions locally,
regionally or nationally, including the economic impact of terrorist activities within and outside
California, couid resuit in an economic downtwn in Southern California and trigger the foliowing
consequences, any of which could adversely affect the Bank’s business:

. loan delinguencies and defauits may increase;
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. problem assets and foreclosures may increase;

. demand for the Bank’s products and services may decline;
. low cost or non-interest bearing deposits may decrease; and
. collateral for loans may decline in value, in tarn reducing customers’ borrowing power, and

reducing the value of assets and collateral as sources of repayment of existing loans.

¢ The Bank has a concentration risk in commercial real estate related loans.

On December 6, 2006, the federal bank regulatory agencies issued final joint guidance on
Concentrations in Commercial Real Estate Lending, Sound Management Practices (“CRE Concentration
Risk Guidance™). Under the CRE Concentration Risk Guidance, institutions with specific types of
commercial real estate loans exceeding 300 percent of total capital and experiencing growth rates
exceeding 50 percent during the past 36 months will be subject to increased regulatory scrutiny. The
CRE Concentration Risk Guidance focuses on commercial real estate loans for which the cash flows from
the real estate is the primary source of repayment, effectively excluding properties that are largely owner
occupied.

At December 31, 2007, approximately $52.6 million, or 176.1 percent of the Bank’s total capital
consisted of commercial real estate loans and construction and land loans covered by the CRE
Concentration Risk Guidance. Substantially all of the Bank’s real property collateral is located in its
operating markets in Southern California. A substantial decline in real estate values in the Bank’s primary
market areas could occur as a result of worsening economic conditions, 2 general contraction of available
credit in the marketplace, or other events including natural disasters such as earthquakes, fires, and floods.
Such a decline in values could have an adverse impact on the Bank by limiting repayment of defaulted
loans through sale of the real estate collateral and by likely increasing the number of defaulted ioans to
the extent that the financial condition of its borrowers is adversely affected by such a decline in values.

¢« The Bank is subject to extensive regulation, which could adversely affect its business.

The Bank’s operations are subject fo extensive regulation by state and local governmental
authorities and are subject to various laws and judicial and administrative decisions imposing
requirements and restrictions on part or all of its operations. The Bank believes that it is in substantial
compliance in all material respects with laws, rules and regulations applicable to the conduct of its
business. Because the Bank’s business is highly regulated, the laws, rules and regulations applicable to it
are subject to regular modification and change. There can be no assurance that these laws, rules and
regulations, or any other laws, rules or regulations, will not be adopted in the future, which couid make
compliance much more difficult or expensive, restrict the Bank’s ability to originate, broker or sell loans,
further limit or restrict the amount of commissions, interest or other charges earned on loans originated or
sold by the Bank, or otherwise adversely affect the Bank’s results of operations, financial condition, or
future prospects.

e The Bank’s allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to provide for
possible loan defaults and non-performance, but its allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to
cover actual loan Josses. In addition, future provisions for loan losses could materially and adversely
affect the Bank’s and therefore the Bank’s operating results. The Bank’s allowance for loan losses is
based on prior experience, as well as an evaluation of the risks in the current portfolio. The amount of
future losses 18 susceptible to changes in economie, operating and other conditions, including changes in
the local and California real estate market, and interest rates, that may be beyond the Bank’s control, and
these losses may exceed current estimates. The OCC, as an integral part of its examination process,
reviews the Bank’s loans and ailowance for loan losses. Although we believe that the Bank’s allowance
for ioan losses is adequate to cover current losses, we cannot assure you that further increases in the
allowance for loan losses will not be necessary, or that regulators will not require the Bank fo increase
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this allowance in the future. Either of these occurrences could materially and adversely affect the Bank’s
earnings.

¢ The Bank’s operations are dependent upon key personnel.

The future prospects of the Bank is highly dependent on its directors, executive officers and other
key personnel, and the Bank’s ability to attract and retain experienced banking professionals to serve the
Bank in other key positions. The unexpected loss of the services of any of these individuals could have a
detrimental effect on the Bank.

¢ Technology implementation problems or computer system failures could adversely affect
the Bank.

The Bank’s future prospects will be highly dependent on the ability of the Bank to impiement
changes in technology that affect the delivery of banking services such as the increased demand for
computer access to bank accounts and the availability to perform banking transactions electronically. The
Bank’s ability to compete will depend upon its ability to continue to adapt technology on a timely and
cost-effective basis to meet such demands. In addition, the business and operations of the Bank will be
susceptible to adverse effects from computer failures, communication and energy disruption, and the
activities of unethical individuals with the technological ability to cause disruptions or failures of the
Bank’s data processing system.

» Information security breaches or other technology difficulties could adversely affect the
Bank.

The Bank cannot be certain that implementation of safeguards will eliminate the risk of
vulnerability to technological difficulties or failures or ensure the absence of a breach of information
security. The Bank relies on the services of various vendors who provide data processing and
communication services to the banking industry. Nonetheless, if information security is compromised or
other technology difficulties or failures occur, information may be lost or misappropriated, services and
operations may be interrupted and the Bank could be exposed to claims from its customers as a resuit.
The occurrence of any of these events could adversely affect the Bank’s results of operations, financial
condition, prospects, and stock price.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Bank has two offices: its main office in Newport Beach and its Fullerton branch office. The
Bank’s Newport Beach main office is located on the ground floor of a three-story building at the corner of
MacArthur Boulevard and Von Karman Avenue in Newport Beach, California. The building, located at
4040 MacArthur Boulevard, Newport Beach, California, is conveniently located near the John Wayne
Airport, and the Newport (55) and San Diego (I-405) freeways. The Newport Beach main office,
consisting of approximately 11,943 rentable square feet, houses all of the operations and administration,
including the location’s branch operations. The Fullerton branch office is located in a single story office
building in the Fullerton Town Square Shopping Center at the comer of Orangethorpe Avenue and
Lemon Street in Fullerton, California.

The Bank's Newport Beach main office is leased for a ten-year period, which commenced on
March 1, 2007, the date sixty days after completion of tenant improvernents. The monthly rent under the
lease is $29,499 per month for the first and second years of the lease term. The monthly rent will increase
to $30,694 during the third and fourth years, to $32,246 during the fifth and sixth years, to $33,440 during
the seventh and eighth years, and to $34,635 during the ninth and tenth vears of the lease term. The
effective rental rate (average rental rate) over the 120-month term is $2.62 per rental square foot per
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month, or $31,265 per month. The Bank is also responsible for its pro rata share of any operating
expenses incurred by the landlord for common areas of the building.

The Bank's branch office in Fullerton is leased for an initial eighty-eight month period, which
commenced October §, 2003, with two successive seven-year options. The monthly rent under the lease
was abated for the first four months, and was $12,410 per month for months five through sixteen of the
lease term. The monthly rent will increase to $12,782 during months seventeen through twenty-eight of
the lease term, to $13,166 during months twenty-nine through forty, to $13,561 during months forty-one
through fifty-two, to $13,968 during months fifty-three through sixty-four, to $14,387 during months
sixty-five through seventy-six, and to $14,818 during months seventy-seven through eighty-eight. The
effective rental rate (average rental rate) over the 88-month term is $1.78 per rental square foot per
month, or $12,967 per month. The Bank is also responsible for its pro rata share of any operating
expenses incurred by the landlord for common areas of the shopping center.

The Bank’s Frvine office was closed and its business was transferred to the Newport Beach office
on January 12, 2007. The Irvine space was subsequently sublet on December 31, 2006, for the same
amount of rent that the Bank is obligated to pay on its lease. The space was leased for an initial term of
twenty-four months, which commenced August 1, 2004, with a two year renewal option. The lease was
renewed on August I, 2006, for another 24 months. The monthly rent for the first twelve months on a
full-service- basis is $5,434 and will increase to $5,539 for the last twelve months. The effective rental
rate (average rental rate) over the 24-month term is $2.63 per rental square foot per month, or $5,486 per
month.

Management believes that its existing facilities are adequate for current needs and anticipated
future growth. Management expects that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be
renewed or canceled based upon management's assessment of the Bank's needs at that time.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no legal proceedings adverse to the Bank which any director, officer, affiliate of the
Bank, or 5 percent sharcholder of the Bank, or any associate of any such director, officer, affiliate or 5
percent shareholder of the Bank, is a party, and none of the above persons has a material interest adverse
to the Bank. :

From time fo time, the Bank is a party to claims and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of business. The Bank's management is not aware of any material pending legal proceedings to

which it may be a party or has recently been a party, which will have a material adverse effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Bank.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO THE VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007,
PARTII
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
Trading in our common stock has not been extensive and such trades cannot be characterized a
constituting an active market. Our common stock is not listed on any exchange or quoted by The
NASDAQ® Stock Market, Inc. (“NASDAQ™), although it is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board®

(“OTCBB”) under the ticker symbol “CNBF.OB”. The OTC Bulletin Board® (OTCBB) is a regulated
quotation service that displays real-time quotes, last-sale prices, and volume information in over-the-
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counter (OTC) equity securities. An OTC equity security generally is any equity that is not listed or
traded on NASDAQ or a national securities exchange. Unlike the NASDAQ, however, the OTCBB does
not impose listing standards and does not provide automated trade executions.

The following table sets forth the high and low trading prices and the trading volume of our
common stock for the periods indicated. The trading data listed below are based on information obtained
from the NASDAQ website, which archives historical trading data for many equity securities, including
CNBF.OB.

Share
Sales Prices Volume
High Low
2007
Fourth quarter § 1500 § 1205 107,018
Third quarter § 16.01 § 14.05 119,823
Second guarter § 17.25 $ 1525 103,231
First quarter § 17.50 § 1500 117,359
2006
Fourth quarter $  18.00 $ 1540 322,925
Third quarter § 1745 § 1580 71,438
Second quaster § 1825 I 1700 32,109
First quarter $ 19.00 $ 1625 95,574
2003 '
Fourth quarter $ 1725 $ 1550 86,305
Third quarter § 17175 § 13.00 191,059
Second quarter $ 13.00 $ 11.50 22,873
First quarter $ 14.25 § 1225 95,444

According to the NASDAQ webstte, as of March 19, 2008, CNBF closing share price was $13.90
per share. As of that date, the 52-week range in sales prices for our common stock was between $13.00
and $17.50 per share. The “bid” and “asked” prices as of March 19, 2008, were $13.50 and $13.90,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, the Common Stock of the Bank was held by approximately 490
hoiders.

Dividends

The Bank's shareholders are entitled to receive dividends when and as declared by its board of
directors, out of funds legally available there for, subject to the restrictions set forth in the National Bank
Act.

The payment of cash dividends by the Bank may be subject to the approval of the Office of the
Conptroller of the Currency, as well as restrictions established by federal banking law and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. Approval of the Office of the Comptrolier of the Currency is required if
the total of ali dividends declared by the Bank's board of directors in any calendar year will exceed the
Bank's net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years, less any
required transfers to surplus or te a fund for the retirement of preferred stock. Additionally, the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and/or the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency might, under some
circumstances, place resirictions on the ability of a bank to pay dividends based upon peer group averages
and the performance and maturity of that bank.

To date, the Bank has not paid any dividends to its sharehoiders.

23



Stock Option Plan Compensation Information

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2007, relating to the Bank’s
2003 Stock Option Plan pursuant to which grants of options, restricted stock or other rights to acquire

shares may be granted from time to time.

Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
Number of securitiesto  exercise price of available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise outstanding under equify compensation plans
of outstanding options,  options, warrants {excluding securities reflected in
warrants and rights and rights column { a)]
{a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plan
approved by security holders 480,022 $13.41 95,918
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders - -
Total 480.022 $13.41 95,918

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Financial Summary

The following table presents certain financial information concerning the business of the Bank.
This information should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements, the notes thereto, and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis included in this report.
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As of and For the Years Ended December 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts and raties.)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Net interest income $ 8337 § 6193 § 3540 § 869 % 4
Provision for loan and lease losses 304 439° 476 310
Other income 715 571 104 26 -
Other expenses 8,178 6,120 3,930 3,324 111
Income before income taxes 570 205 {(762) (2,739 (107
Income taxes (Benefit) {479) {479) - - -
Net income $ 1,049 % 684 § (762) § (2,739) § (107)
Earnings per share ~ basic 3039 % 026 % (0.42) § (228) § (0.09)
Earnings per share — diluted $ 039 § 025 § (042) § (228 § (0.09)

Cash dividends per share - - - - .

Book value per share 10.63 10.01 9.46 6.62 §.89
Tangible book value per share 10.63 10.01 9.46 6.62 8.89
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Balance sheet totals-end of period:
Assets $205,792 $168,653 $113,741 § 61,960 $ 11,524
Loans, net 119,111 97,617 64,869 24,151 -
Deposits 176,843 141,637 38,867 53,912 722
Shareholders” equity 28,271 26,559 24,667 8,006 10,665
Average balance sheet amounts:
Assets _ 185,550 142,586 90,942 34,532 49]
Loans, net 113,211 87,241 42714 9,685 .
Earning assets 179,401 138379 87,082 31,786 381
Deposits 157,478 117,090 75,529 25,293 16
Shareholders’ equity 27417 25,036 15,241 9,203 447
- SELECTED RATIOS:
For the year:
Return on average equity 3.8% 2.7% S50% -298%  -23.9%
Return on average agsets 0.57% 0.48% -(h84%  -7.93% -21.79%
Efficiency ratio 90.3% 90.5% 107.8%  371.4% 2775.0%
Net interest margin 4.65% 4.48% 4.07%  273%  1.05%
Net charge-offs to average loans & leases 0.04% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% NA
At December 31:
Average equity to average assets 14.8% 17.6% 16.8% 26.6% 91.0%
Leverage capital to total loans 23.7% 27.2% 38.1% 33.2% NA

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following is the Bank’s management’s discussion and analysis of the significant changes in
income and expense accounts for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.
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General

The following discussion and analysis highlights the major components affecting the Bank's

growth in net income and total assets for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007.

“This presentation includes and should be reviewed in conjunction with, information derived from

financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report. Reference to 2007, 2006 and
2005 represents activity for the three years in the period ending December 31, 2007.

Forward Looking Statements

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking information, which is subject to the “safe harbor”
created by Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21F of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We may make forward-iooking statements in other filings with the
Office of the Comptrolier of the Currency, press releases, news articles, conference calls with analysts
and shareholders and when we are speaking on behalf of the Bank. Forward-looking statements can be
identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Often, they include the
words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “project,” or words of similar
meaning, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” or “may.” These
forward-looking statements are intended to provide investors with additional information with which they
may assess our future potential. All of these forward-looking statements are based on assuraptions about
an uncertain future and are based on information available at the date such statements are issued,

LRI Y

There are numerous risks and uncertainties that could and will cause actual results to differ from
those discussed in our forward-looking statements. Many of these factors are beyond our ability to
control or predict and could have a material adverse effect on our stock price, financial condition, results
of operations or prospects. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following
factors: adverse economic conditions in California generally and in Orange County specifically, global
political and general economic conditions related to the ferrorist attacks on September 11, 2001 and their
aftermath, adverse economic conditions affecting certain industries, fluctuations in interest rates, any
controlling interest in the Bank, competition in the banking industry, restrictions on dividends, adverse
effects of curent and future banking rules, regulations and legislation, and risks associated with various
strategies the Bank may pursue, including potential acquisitions, divestitures and restructurings.

Overview

This discussion is intended to provide a better understanding of the material changes and trends
relating to the financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity of the Bank. The following
discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and notes thereto included
elsewhere in this document.

The Bank achieved significant growth in 2007, ending the year at $205.8 million in tota] assets,
an increase of $37.1 million, or 22 percent over December 31, 2006. Total assets of $168.7 million at
December 31, 2006 were an increase of $54.9 million, or 48.3 percent over total assets at December 31,
2005 of $113.7 million. Net loans at December 31, 2007 were $119.1 million, compared to $97.6 million
at December 31, 2006, an increase of $21.5 million or 22 percent. Net loans at year-end 2006 increased
$32.7 million or 50.5 percent from the $64.9 millior outstanding at December 31, 2005. Deposits at
December 31, 2007 were $176.8 million, compared to $141.7 million at December 31, 2006, an increase
of $35.1 million or 24.8 percent. Deposits at December 31, 2006 increased $52.8 million or 59.4 percent
from total deposits of $88.9 million reported at December 31, 2005. Shareholders’ equity totaled $28.3
million, or 13.7 percent of total assets at year-end 2007, as compared with $26.6 million, or 15.7 percent
of assets at year-end 2006, and $24.7 million, or 21.7 percent of total assets at year-end 2005,

The net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $1,049,000 or $0.39 per basic and
diluted common share, compared to net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 of $684,000 or
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$0.26 per basic common share and $0.25 per diluted common share, and a net loss of $763,000 or $(0.42)
per basic and diluted common share for the year ended December 31, 2005,

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial staterents are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) and general practices in the banking industry.
The accounting policies we follow in determining the sufficiency of our allowance for loan losses and our
valuation allowance for deferred income taxes involve judgments, estimates and assumptions which can
have a material impact on the carrying value of our loans and deferred income tax assets and, as a result,
we consider these accounting policies to be critical accounting policies.

Allowance for Loan Losses. In determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, we use
the Bank's credit loss experience and industry peer group loss factors, adjusted for current trends and
other economic indicators, to determine the inherent losses that may be present in our loan portfolio.

Actual loan losses could be greater than that predicted by those loss factors and our assessments
of current trends and conditions. In such an event, we would be required to increase the ajlowance for
loan losses by means of a charge to income referred to in our financial statements as the “provision for
loan Josses.” Such an increase would reduce the carrying value of our loans on our balance sheet, and the
additional provision for loan losses taken to increase that allowance would reduce our income, in the
period when it is determined that an increase in the allowance for loan losses is necessary.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Bank has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 123(R) “Share-Based Payment.” This Statement generally requires entities to recognize
the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of stock options, or other equity
instruments, based on the grant-date fair value of those awards. This cost is recognized over the period
which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for the award, generally the vesting
period. -

The Bank adopted SFAS No. 123(R)} on January 1, 2006 using the “meodified prospective
method.” Under this method compensation expense is recognized using the fair-value method for all new
stock option awards as well as any existing awards that are modified, repurchased or cancelled after
January 1, 2006, and prior periods are not restated. In addition, the unvested portion of previously
awarded options outstanding as of January 1, 2006, wiil also be recognized as expense over the requisite
service period based on the fair value of those options as previously calculated at the grant date under the
pro-forma disclosures of SFAS No. 123. The fair value of each grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. During 2007, the Bank recognized pre-tax stock-based compensation expense of
$603,000 as a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). In 2006, the Bank recognized pre-tax stock-based
compensation expense of $678,000.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Bank accounted for stock-based awards using the
intrmsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (“APB™) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock
options was measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Bank’s stock at the date of
the grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. All of the Bank’s stock option
grants included exercise prices equal to the Bank’s current market price per share at the date of grant;
accordingly, no compensation expense was reported using the intrinsic value method of APB Opinion No.
25.

Income Taxes. Deferred income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, which
recognizes a deferred tax liability or asset representing the tax effects, based on current tax law, of future
deductible or taxable amounts attributable to events that have been recognized in the financial statements.
Annual deferred tax expense (benefit) is equal to the change in the deferred tax liability (asset) account
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from the beginning to the end of the year. A current tax asset or liability is recognized for the estimated
taxes refundable or payable for the current year. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset
will not be realized.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” effective for
the Bank as of January I, 2008. This Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement establishes a fair
value hierarchy that distinguishes between valuations obtained from sources independent of the entity and
those from the entity’s own observable inputs that are not corroborated by observable market data. SFAS
No. 157 expands disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities in mterim and
annual periods subsequent to initial recognition. The disclosures focus on the input used to measure fair
value, and for recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs, the effect of the
measurements on earnings or changes in net assets for the period. The Bank is currently assessing the
impact of this guidance on its financial statements.

~ In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" SFAS No. 159
permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.
Most of the provisions of SFAS No. 159 are elective; however, the amendment to SFAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” applies to al} entities with available-
for-sale or trading securities. For financial instruments elected 10 be accounted for at fair value, an entity
will report the unrealized gains and losses in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of
an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after November 15, 2007. The Bank is curently assessing the
financial impact this Statement will have on its financial conditions or results of operations.

Earnings Overview

Net earnings in 2007 were $1,049,000, a 53.4 percent increase over 2006 earnings of $684,000.
The Bank's net loss in 2005 totaled $763,000. On a per share basis, net earnings were $0.36 in 2007
compared with net earnings of $0.25 in 2006 and a net loss of $(0.42) in 2005,

Operating results in 2007 reflected net interest income of $8.3 million, an increase of §2.1
million, or 34.6 percent over the $6.2 million in net interest income reported in 2006, 2006 net interest
income increased by $2.7 miilion, or 74.9 percent over the $3.5 miilion in net interest income reported in
2005. The increases in net interest income were primarily attributable to growth in the Bank’s portfolio
of interest carning assets. Average interest earning assets during 2007 totaled $179.4 million, an increase
of $41.0 million, or 29.6 percent over 2006. Average interest earning assets during 2006 totaled $138.4
million, an increase of $51.3 million, or 58.9 percent over 2005,

Loan loss provisions were reported totaling $305,000 i 2007, $439,000 in 2006, and $476,0006 in
2005, The amount of loan loss provision is dependent upon loan growth, market conditions, and the risk
profiie of the loan portfolio as of the reporting date. At year-end 2007, the allowance for loan losses was
1.24 percent of outstanding loans as compared to 1.24 percent in 2006 and 1.20 percent in 2003.

Increases in net interest income were offset by increases in non-interest expense. Non-interest
expense totaled $8.2 million in 2007, $6.1 million in 2006 and $3.9 million in 2005. Non-interest income
also showed increases during the past three years. In 2007, non-interest income totaied §714,000, up
from $572,000 reported in 2006 and $104,000 reported in 2005. Income tax benefits of $479,000

‘contributed to earnings in both 2007 and 2006.
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Resnits of Operations

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between the interest yield generated by eaming assets and
the interest expense associated with the funding of those assets. Net interest income is affected by the
interest rate earned or paid and by volume changes in loans, investment securities, deposits and borrowed

funds,

non-interest income), compared to 1.5 percent in 2006 and 97.2 percent in 2005.

In 2007, net interest income represented 92.1 percent of net revenues (net interest income pius

The following Table 1 reflects an analysis of net interest income, asset yields, liability costs, and
average balances of assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity in 2007 compared to 2006 and 2005.

Table 1

Net Inferest Income and Average Balances
For the Year Ended December 31 2007, 2006 and 2008
(in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
Interest  Average interest  Average Interest  Average
Average  Famed Yieldor  Average Famed Yieldor Average Eamed Yieldor
Balance  orPaid  Cost Balance  or Paid Cost  Balance  orPaid Cost
Assets
Interest-Earming Asseis:
Loans § 113211 $8751 T73% § 87241 §6,761 7.75% § 42,714 § 3,078 7.21%
Investment Securities 14,408 695 4.82% 21,587 867 402% 23,116 744 3.22%
Federal Funds Soid 36,065 1,774 492% 21975 L7 5.08% 13,131 436 332%
Other Interest-Bearing Deposits 15,717 832 5.29% 7,576 435 5.74% 8,121 332 4.0%%
Total Interest-Eaming Assets 179401 12,082 6.72% 138,379 9180 6.63% 87,082 4,59 527%
Cash and Due from Banks 4,017 3,394 2,127
Premises and Equipment 1,340 841 1,001
Accroed Interest and Other Assets 2,165 1,006 630
Alowance for Loan Losses (1,373) {1,034) {_498) -
Total Assets ) § 185,550 $142,386 $90,942
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Money Market, Savings and NOW  § 110412 § 3412 3.09% § 83625 §2703 323% § 50436 % 904 1.79%
Time Deposits under $100,000 697 27 3.87% 490 19 3.88% 185 4 2.16%
Time Deposits of $100,000 or More 6,851 278 4.03% 7073 265 3.75% 4,052 130 321%
Other Borrowings - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 348 12 3.45%
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 17960 3718 115% 91,188 2,987 328% 55,021 1,050 1.91%
Demand Deposits 39,518 25,902 20,508
Other Liahilities 655 460 172
Shareholders' Equity 27417 25,036 15,241
Tota} Liabilities and Shareholders' Equit § 185,350 $142,586 $90,042
Net Interest Income % 8337 $ 46,193 §$ 3,540
Interest Spread’ 3.57% 3.35% 1.36%
Interest Margin’ £65% 4 48% 4.07%

" Yield on interest-carning assets less cost of interest-bearing Habilities -
? Net interest income divided by average earning assets
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The foliowing table analyzes the doliar amount of change in interest income and expense and the
changes in doliar amounts attributable to: (a) changes in volume (changes in volume at the current year
rate), (b) changes in rate (change in rate times the prior year’s volume) and (c) changes in rate volume

e —.{change in rate times change in volume). In this table, the dollar change in rate/volume is prorated to. ...

volume and rate proportionally.

Table 2
Rate / Volume Variance Analysis
(in thousands)

Year ended December 31, 2007 Year ended December 31, 2006
Compared with Compared with
Year ended December 31, 2006 Year ended December 31, 2005
Increase (decrease) due to change in Increase (decrease) due to change in
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest-Earning Assets:
Loans § 2013 § 23y § 1,990 $ 3209 § 4714 § 3,683
Investment Securities (288) 116 (172} (4% 172 123
Federal Funds Sold 716 {59 657 294 387 681
Other Interest Bearing Deposits 467 {70} 397 (22} 125 103
Total Interest Income 2908 (36) 2,872 3431 1,159 4,590
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Money Market, Savings and NOW 866 (157) 709 595 1,204 1,796
Time Deposits under $100,000 3 ()] 8 7 8§ 15
Time Deposits of $100,000 or More (8) 19 11 97 38 135
Other Borrowings - - - (12) - (12
Total Interest Expense 866 {138} 728 686 1,251 1,937
Net Interest Income $ 2,042 $ 102 S 23144 § 2744 % 9y 3§ 2,653

Net interest income is the largest component of net earnings of a financial institution such as our
bank. Net interest income refers to the difference between the interest earned on loans and investments
and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. The Bank’s net interest income is impacted by the
amount and mix of interest earning assets and the amount and mix of interest bearing liabilities. Net
interest income is also impacted by the relative yields of different classes of the Bank’s assets and the
relative costs of different classes of the Bank’s liabilities. Taken together, the yields on assets and the
costs of liabilities comprise the net interest spread and net interest margin of the Bank.

Net interest spread is defined as the difference between the average yield on interest-earning
assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. In 2007, the Bank’s net interest spread was 3.57
percent, which equaled the difference between the average yield on the Bank’s interest-earning assets of
6.72 percent and the average cost of the Bank’s interest-bearing labilities of 3.15 percent. The Bank’s
net interest spread in 2007 of 3.57 percent increased 22 basis points from the net interest spread of 3.35
percent reported in 2006, The Bank’s net interest spread in 2006 of 3.35 percent decreased one basis
point from the net interest spread of 3.36 percent in 2003,

In contrast with net interest spread, net interest margin includes the impact of differences between
the volume of interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities. In 2007, the Bank’s average interest
earning assets were $179.4 million, which exceeded its interest bearing liabilities of $118.0 miliion by
$61.4 million. The additional funding sources that account for the $61.4 million difference between
average interest earnings assets and interest bearing liabilities during 2007 were §39 million in average
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non-interest bearing demand deposit accounts and $27.4 million in average shareholders’ equity. In 2006,
the Bank’s average interest earning assets were $138.4 million, which exceeded its interest bearing
Habilities of $91.2 million by $47.2 million. In 20035, the Bank’s average interest eaming assets were
- $87.1 million, which exceeded its interest bearing liabilities of $55.0 million by $32.1 million.

Net interest margin is defined as net interest income divided by average eaming assets. In 2007,
the Bank’s net interest margin was 4.65 percent, an increase of 17 basis points over the Bank’s net interest
margin of 4.48 percent during 2006. The 17 basis point increase in the Bank’s net interest margin was
due to a 22 basis point increase in interest spread from 3.35 percent during 2006 to 3.57 percent during
2007, and a net increase in interest earning assets of $14.2 million. The Bank’s 4.48 percent net interest
margin in 2006 represented a 41 basis point increase over the Bank’s 4.07 percent net interest margin
reported in 2005. The 41 basis point increase in the Bank’s net interest margin resulted from a net
increase in interest earning assets of $15.1 million offset by a one basis point decrease in interest spread
from 3.36 percent during 2005 to 3.35 percent during 2006.

Interest and fees on loans for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $8.8 million as compared to
$6.8 miliion for the prior year and $3.1 million in 2005. Interest on investment securities for the year
ended December 31, 2007 was $695,000 as compared to $867,000 for the prior year and $744,000 in
2005, Other interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $2.6 million, as compared to $1.6
million for 2006 and $0.8 million in 2005. Total interest and fee income for the vear ended December 31,
2007 was $12.1 million, as compared to $9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, and $4.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The Bank’s total interest and fee income increased by
$2.9 million in 2007, as compared to 2006, and by $4.6 million in 2006, as compared to 2005, The vyear-
over-year increases in total interest and fee income were primarily attributable to increases in interest-
garning assets.

The Bank’s portfolio of average interest earning assets increased by 29.6 percent from $138.4
million during 2006, to $179.4 million during 2007. While average interest earming assets increased
significantly during 2007, the mix did not change materially. Average total loans to total interest-earning
assets were 63,1 percent and 63.0 percent in 2007 and 2006, respectively. During 2006, the Bank’s
average portfolio of interest eaming assets increased by 58.9 percent from $87.1 million during 2005, to
$138.4 million during 2006. While average interest earning assets increased significantly during 2006,
the mix also shifted in favor of higher yielding loans. Average total loans to total interest-earning assets
increased from 49.1 percent of total interest earning assets during 2005, to 63.0 percent in 2006.

Interest expense increased to $3.7 million in 2007, as compared to $3.0 million in 2006, and $1.0
million in 2005, due primarily to an increase in average interest bearing liabilities from $55.0 million in
2003, to §91.2 million during 2006 and $118.0 million during 2007. Interest bearing checking accounts,
money market accounts and savings accounts were 93.6 percent, 91.7 percent and 92.3 percent of average
interest-bearing deposits at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively., Time deposits under
$100,000 were less than one percent of average inferest-bearing deposits for 2007, 2006 and 2005, while
time deposits over $100,000 were 5.8 percent, 7.8 percent 7.4 percent of average interest-bearing deposits
at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Average non-interest bearing demand deposits
during 2007 increased to $39.5 million, as compared to $25.9 million in 2006 and $20.5 million in 2005.
During 2007, 2006 and 20035, average non-interest bearing accounts were 25.1 percent, 22.1 percent and
27.3 percent of total average interest-bearing deposits, respectively.

The cost of interest bearing liabilities in 2007 was 3,15 percent, as compared to 3.28 percent in
2006 and 1.91 percent in 20035. The decline in the cost of liabilities from 2006 to 2007 was primarily the
result of a decline in the average cost of Money Market, Savings and NOW accounts, which decreased
from 3.23 percent in 2006 to 3.09 percent in 2007. The increase in the cost of liabilities from 2005 to
2006 was primarily the result of an increase in the average cost of Money Market, Savings and NOW
accounts, which increased from 1.79 percent in 2005 to 3.23 percent in 2006. The majority of the Bank's
deposit funding comes from the Bank’s Money Market, Savings and NOW accounts. The average rate
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paid for time certificates of deposits under $100,000 was 3.87 percent in 2007, 3.88 percent in 2006 and
2.16 percent in 2005. The average rate paid for time certificates of deposits over $100,000 was 4.03
percent in 2007, 3.75 percent in 2006 and 3.21 percent in 2005. There were no other borrowings during
2007 or 2006, but 2 small average balance of $348,000 during 2005.

Table 3 presents the relationship of the reserve to the loan portfolio over the past five years,

Table 3
Allocation of the Alowance for Loan Losses
{in thousands)

As of December 31,
2007 2006 2003 2004 2003
Percent of Percent of Parcent of Parcent of Percent of

Loan Lans Loan Loans Loan  Leans Loan Loans Loan Loans
Loss  InEach toss  InEach Loss  InFach [oss  InBach loss  InEmh

Mlow- CategoryTo  Allow- CategoryTo  Allow- CategoryTo Allow- Categery To  Allow-  Category To
ance  TotalLoans  ance Totalloans  ance TotalLoans  ance TotalLoans  ance  TotafLoans

Amount % Amount % Amount % Amomnt % Amount %

Censtruction and Land Development 308 % § 2 20.2% 180 95% § & 7% § NA

Commercial Real Estate 503 30.5% 9 KL 154 25.7% 8 18.8% NA

Commercial m 240% il 2.9% 164 20.9% 99 14.0% NA

Consumer, icluding

Home Equity Lines of Credit 24 18.9% 246 23.8% 178 23.6% 106 29.0% NA

Unallocated b1 - 16 . 110 - 15 - NA
Total $ 1488 09.7% § 1225 99.6% § 786 W% 5 M Bl 5 -

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Bank has the responsibility of assessing the overall risks in its loan portfolio, assessing the
specific loss expectancy, and testing the adequacy of the loan loss reserve. The level of reserves is
determined by internally generating credit quality ratings, reviewing economic conditions in the Bank's
market area, and considering the Bank's historical loan loss experience. The Bank is committed to
maintaining adequate reserves, identifying credit weaknesses by consistent review of loans, and
maintaining the ratings and changing those ratings in a timely manner as circamstances change.

The aliowance for loan losses totaled $1,488,000, $1,225,000, and $786,000 at December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. This represented 1.23 percent, 1.24 percent, and 1.20 percent of
outstanding loans on those respective dates. The balances reflect an amount that, in management's
judgment, is adequate to provide for potential loan losses based on the considerations listed above. During
2007, the provision for loan losses was $305,000 while write-offs totaled $42,000, compared to a
provision for loan losses of $439,000 in 2006, and a provision for loan losses of $476,000 in 2005. There
was no significant singie loan written off in the periods mentioned.

Table 4 summarizes transactions in the allowance for loan losses and details the charge-offs,
recoveries and net loan losses by loan category for the last five years. The amount added to the provision
and charged to operating expense for each period is based on loan growth and the risk profile of the loan

portfolio,
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Table 4
Allowance for Loan Losses
Historical Analysis

(in thousands)
For the Year Ended December 31
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Allowance For Loan Losses:

Balance at Beginning of Period $§ 1225 % 786 & 310 % - % -
Charge-Offs: - - -
Comimercial - - - - -
Consumer 42 - - - -
Real Estate - - - - -

Total Charge-Offs 42 - - - -
Recoveries: - - -
Commercial . - - - -
Consumer - - - - -
Real Estate - - - - -

Total Recoveries - - - - -

Net Loans Charged-Off (Recovered) 42 . . - -

Provision for Loan Losses 305 439 476 310 -

Balance at End of Year $ 1,488 $1225 % 786§ 310 5 -

Ratios: '

Net Loans Charged-Off (Recovered) to

Averape Loans 0.04% NA NA NA NA
Allowance for Loan Losses to

Total Loans 1.23% 1.24% 1.20% 1.27% NA
Net Loans Charged-Off (Recovered) to Beginning

Allowance for Loan Losses . 3.43% NA NA NA NA
Net Loans Charged-Off (Recovered) to ‘

Provision for Loan Losses 13.77% NA NA NA NA
Allowance for Loan Losses to

Nonperforming Loans NA NA NA NA NA

Nonperforming Assets

Non-performing assets consist of nonaccrual loans, foreclosed assets, and loans that are 90 days
or more past due but are still accruing interest. Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when, in the
judgment of the management of the Bank, serious doubt exists as to the collectibility of additional interest
within a reasonable period of time.

Nonperforming loans equaled zerc percent of total loans at the end of 2007, 2006 and 2005.

There were no past due loans at year end for the past five years. There were no foreclosed assets as of the
periods indicated.
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Non-Interest Income
The components of the non-interest expense were as follows for the periods indicated:

2007 2006 2005
% Average % Average Y Average
(000Y's Assets {000)s Assets {000Y's Assets
Service Changes, Fees and Other Income § 185 01% § 114 81% § 62 0.1%
Gain on Sale of Loans and Referral Fees 529 0.3% 458 0.3% 41 0.0%
Total Noninterest Income § 714 0.4% £ m 04% § 103 0.1%

Service charges and fees for the year 2007 increased $71,000 or 62.3 percent over 2006, and an
increase of $52,000 or 83.9 percent in 2006 over prior year. The increases were due primarily to growth
of our deposits.

Gain on sale of loans and referral fees were §529,000, $458,000 and $41,000-in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Gain on sale of loans is primarily from the sale of the guaranteed portion of the SBA loans.
Gain on sale of loans amounting to $16,000, $47,000 and $-0- for 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively, is
included in Gain on Sale of Loans and Referral Fees in the accompanying Statements of Operations.

Included in the Gain on sale of loans and referral fees is the referral fees. Referral fees are the net
premiums received as a result of brokered loans to third parties, loans that we do not originate for our own
portfolio because of a variety of reasons. Referral fees were $513,000, $411,000 and $41,000 in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Non-Interest Expense
The components of the non-interest expense were as follows for the periods indicated:

2007 2006 2005
Average % Average % Average
{000)'s Assets {000)'s Assets {000)'s Assets
Salaries & Benefits § 4441 24% % 3,603 25% § 2257 . 25%
Occupancy & Equipment Expense 965 0.5% 598 0.4% 541 0.6%
Director Stock-Based Compensation 204 0.1% 254 0.2% . - 0.0%
Professional Fees 627 0.3% 422 {.3% 281 0.3%
Data Processing 457 0.2% 347 0.2% 287 0.3%
Marketing and Promotional 177 0.1% 215 0.2% &9 0.1%
Customer Service 6359 0.4% 155 0.1% 66 0.1%
Office Expenses 107 G.1% 102 0.1% 62 0.1%
Other Expenses 341 0.3% 424 0.3% 347 0.4%
Total non-interest expense 5 8,178 44% § 6120 43% § 3930 4,4%

Nozn-interest expense increased 32.1 million or 33.6 percent in 2007 over 2006 and $2.2 million
or 35.7 percent in 2006 over 2005. Most of the 2007 increase was from salaries and employee benefits,
which increased by $838,000 and premises expense, which increased $367,000 over 2006. In 2006, most
of the increase was in salaries and emplovee benefits, which increased $1.3 million.

Salaries and employee benefits were $4.4 million in 2007 compared to $3.6 million for 2006.
The increase in 2007 was primarily due to salaries and other incentive compensation including
commissions paid to officers and staff. The increase in 2006 was primarily due to salaries and stock
option expense adopted pursuant to the requirements of SFAS 123(R) “Share-Based Payments” For
further information on stock options, please see the following paragraph in this section and Note K of the
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Notes to the Financial Statements. Total full-time equivalent employees remained at 32 at December 31,
2007 and 2006, and 26 at December 31, 2005.

In 2006, the Bank recorded $678,000 stock option expense, $424,000 for employees (included in
salaries and benefits) and $254,000 for outside Directors. In 2007, the Bank recorded $603,000 of stock
option expense, $399,000 for employees (included in salaries and benefits) and $204,000 for outside
Directors.

Occupancy and equipment expense was $965,000 in 2007 as compared to $598,000 in 2006 and
$541,000 in 2005. Occupancy expense inciudes rent expense, net of rental income, of $409,000,
$215,000 and $204,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Bank has operating lease
commitments for its new Newport Beach main office and its Fullerton branch. See Item 2 — Description
of Property for details on lease commitments.

Professional expense includes costs related to legal services, audits and examinations, and outside
consulting services, which increased $205,000 in 2007 and $141,000 in 2006, primarily as a result of the
Bank’s growth and the expanded scope of audits and consulting engagements, including the
implementation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which became effective in 2007 for the Bank.

Customer services include third-party payments and courier services used to pick up deposits at
customers’ offices for transport to our processing center. The expense increased $504,000 in 2007 and
$89,000 in 2006 due primarily to growth in demand deposit customer accounts and the related third-party
payvments. A portion of these expenses were charged to the Bank’s business customer accounts as
additional fees.

Data processing costs are the charges associated with providing the infrastructure, servicing and
connectivity for data, item processing, ATM, and Internet services for the Bank. Data processing expense
increased in 2007 due primarily to the opening of a new headquarters office in Newport Beach, and in
2006 due to the increased volume of loan and deposit activities.

Income Taxes

Income before income taxes totaled $569,000 and $205,000 for 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
Bank reported income tax benefits of $479,000 in both 2007 and 2006. The reported tax benefits are
related to net operating losses totaling $4.4 million accurnulated from 2003 to 2005, The tax effect of the
$4.4 million in net operating iosses, combined with other timing differences, resulted in a total deferred
tax asset before valuation allowance of $2.0 million at year-end 2005. A valuation allowance of $2.0
million at vear-end 2005 was also established because the Bank had not reported earnings sufficient
enough to recognize the tax benefits associated with the deferred tax asset. During 2006, the Bank’s
operations turned profitable and tax benefits of $479,000 were recognized along with additional valuation
allowance utilizations of $256,000. The valuation allowance balance at year-end 2006 was $1.3 million.
During 2007, tax benefits of $479,000 were recognized along with additional valuation aliowance
utilizations of $392,000. The valuation allowance balance at year-end 2007 was $382,000.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Total assets were $205.8 million, $168.7 million, and $113.7 million at December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Assets averaged $185.6 million in 2007 as compared to $142.6 million in 2006
and $90.9 million in 2005. Average earning assets increased from $87.1 million in 2005 to $138.4
million in 2006 and $179.4 million in 2007. Average earning assets were 96.7 percent of total assets in
2007, 97.0 percent in 2006 and 95.8 percent in 2005. Total interest-bearing liabilities averaged $118.0
miliion in 2007, $91.2 million in 2006, and $35.0 million in 2005, which represented an increase of 29.4
percent in 2007 over 2006 and 65.8 percent in 2006 over 2005. The components of the Bank's average
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are presented in Table 1.
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Loans

The loan portfolio constitutes the Bank's largest earning asset category. Net loans outstanding at
‘December 31, 2007 reflect an increase of $21.5 million or 22.0 percent from 2006, and $32.7 million or
50.5 percent from 2005, Commercial loans at December 31, 2007 increased $6.3 million or 28.0 percent
from 2006, and $9.0 miilion or 65.4 percent over 2005. Commercial real estate loans at December 31,
2007 increased $15.3 million or 47.4 percent over 2006, and $15.4 million or 91.6 percent over 2005.
Construction loans at December 31, 2007 increased by $0.9 million or 4.4 percent from 2006, and $0.6
million or 3.0 percent from prior vear ended 2005. Consumer loans at December 31, 2007 decreased
$0.8 million or (3.5%) percent from 2006, and increased $8.1 million or 52.0 percent from prior year
ended 2005.

The following table presents a detailed analysis of loans outstanding at December 31, 2003
through December 31, 2007,

Table 6
Loan Portfolio
December 31,
(in thousands)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loans
Construction and Land Development $ 20839 § 19958 § 19386 § 4,383 §
Commercial Real Estate 47,603 32,294 16,859 4.607
Commercial 28,982 22,648 13,691 8,323
Consumer, including Home Equity Lines of Credit 22,757 23,554 15,491 7,006
Net Deferred Loan Costs 418 388 229 31
Total Loans 120,599 08,842 65,656 24,460
Allowance for Loan Losses (1.488) (1,225) {786) {310}
Net Loans $ 119111 § 97617 § 64870 § 24,150 %
Commitments
Letters of Credit b3 655 § 293 % 360 3 447 %
Undisbursed Loans and Commitments to Grant Loans 24,323 28,660 21,608 8,252
Total Commitments ©§ 24978 § 28953 § 21968 B 8699 §

The foliowing table shows the Bank's loan maturities and sensitivities to changes in interest rates
as of December 31, 2007,

Maturing
Maturing After One Maturing
Within But Within Affer
One Year Five Years Five Years Total
Construction and Land Development $ 20839 % - $ - §5 20,839
Real Estate 3,079 42,254 2,269 47,6062
Commercial 19,983 4,268 4,731 28,982
Consumer, including Home Equity Lines of Credit 6,126 7.531 9,101 22,758
Tota} by 50,027 8 54,053 % 16101 § 120181
With predetermined inferest rate $ 6,642 $ 13322 § 16,101 § 36,065
With floating interest rate 43,385 40,731 - 84,116
Total § 50,027 § 54033 § 16101 $ 120,181
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The yield on average loans was 7.73%, 7.75% and 7.21% at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. While the yield on average loans declined by 2 basis points in 2007, the loan yield in 2006
was 54 basis points more than the loan yield earned in 2005, which was due to increase in loan volume
- -and an increasing interest rate environment. Interest income on loans increased by $2.0 million or 29.4
percent in 2007 from the amount earned in 2006. Interest income on loans increased $3.7 million or
119.7 percent in 2006 from the prior year. Average loans totaled $113.2 million during 2007, an increase
of $26.0 million or 29.8 percent from 2006. Average loans totaled $87.2 million during 2006, an increase
of $44.5 million or 104.2 percent over 2003.

Risk Flements in the Loan Portfolic

The Bank assesses and manages credit risk on an ongoing basis through a total credit culture that
emphasizes excellent credit quality, extensive internal monitoring and established formal lending policies.
Additionally, the Bank contracts with an outside loan review consultant to periodicaily review the
existing loan portfolio. Management believes its ability to identify and assess risk and return
characteristics of the Bank’s loan portfolio is critical for profitability and growth. Management strives to
continue its emphasis on credit guality in the loan approval process, active credit administration and
regular monitoring. With this in mind, management has designed and implemented a comprehensive loan
review and grading system that functions to continually assess the credit risk inherent in the loan
portiolio.

Ultimately, underlying trends in economic and business cycles may influence credit quality. The
Bank’s business is concentrated in Orange County, California, which is a diversified economy. The
Bank has significant extensions of credit and commitments to extend credit that are secured by real estate.
The ultimate repayment of these loans is generally dependent on personal or business cash flows or the
sale or refinancing of the real estate. The Bank monitors the effects of current and expected market
conditions and other factors on the collectability of real estate loans. The more significant factors
management considers include lease rates and terms, absorption and sale rates, real estate values, supply
and demand factors, rates of return, operating expenses, inflation, and sufficiency of repayment sources
independent of the real estate including personal guarantees.

_ In extending credit and commitments to borrowers, the Bank generally requires collateral and/or
guarantees as security.” The repayment of such loans is expected to come from cash flow or from
proceeds from the sale of seiected assets of the borrowers. The Bank’s requirement for collateral and/or
guarantees is determined on a case-by-case basis in connection with management’s evaluation of the
creditworthiness of the borrower. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory,
property, plant and equipment, income-producing properties, residences and other real property. The
Bank’s secures its collateral by perfecting its security interest in business assets, and or obtaining deeds of
trust.

In management’s judgment, a concentration exists in commercial real estate loans. The banking
regulator’s CRE Concentration Risk Guidance published on December 6, 2006, focuses attention on
concentrations in construction and land loans, and certain types of commercial real estate loans. Based
upon the defining criteria contained in the CRE Concentration Risk Guidance, at December 31, 2007, the
Bank’s total reported loans for construction, land development and other land equaled $21.7 million, or
72.6 percent of total capital. The CRE Concentration Risk Guidance indicates that institutions with total
reported loans for construction, land development and other land representing 100 percent, or more of
total capital may be identified for further supervisory analysis. The CRE Concentration Risk Guidance
also established criteria for certain types of commercial real estate loans, focusing on commercial real
estate loans for which the cash flows from the real estate is the primary source of repayment, effectively
excluding properties that are largely owner occupied. The CRE Concentration Risk Guidance indicates
that institutions with total commercial real estate loans, including construction and land loans,
representing 300 percent or more of total capital and institutions whose commercial real estate loan
portfolio has increased by 50 percent, or more during the prior 36 months may be identified for further
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supervisory analysis. At December 31, 2007, the Bank's {otal commercial real estate loans that met the
criteria of the CRE Concentration Risk Guidance equaled $52.6 million, or 176.1 percent of total capital.

Although management believes the Company’s real estate concentration to have no more than the
normal risk of collectability, a substantial further decline in the economy in general, or an additional
decline in real estate values in the Bank's primary market areas in particular, could have an adverse
impact on the collectability of these loans and require an increase in the provision for loan losses. An
increase in the Bank’s provision for loan losses could adversely affect the Bank’s future prospects, results
of operations, profitability and stock price. Management believes that its lending policies and
underwriting standards will tend to minimize losses in an economic downtum; however, there is no
assurance that losses will not occur under such circumstances. Management believes that it maintains its
allowance for loan loss at levels adequate to refiect the loss risk inherent in its total loan portfolio.

The Bank’s loan policies and underwriting standards include, but are not limited to, the
following: (1) maintaining a thorough understanding of the Bank’s service area and originating a
significant majority of its loans within that area, (2) maintaining a thorough understanding of borrowers’
knowledge, capacity, and market position in their field of expertise, (3) basing real estate loan approvals
not only on market demand, but also on the borrowers” capacity to support the project financially in the
event it does not perform to expectations (whether sale or income performance), and (4) maintaining
conforming and prudent loan fo value and loan to cost ratios based on independent outside appraisals and
ongoing inspection and analysis by the Bank’s lending officers or contracted third-party professionals.

Investment Portfolio

Investments at December 31, 2007 totaling $31.5 million are comprised of $9.0 million of
availabie-for-sale and $22.5 million of held-to-maturity investments. Investments at December 31, 2006
totaling $14.4 million are comprised of $8.6 million of available-for-sale and $5.8 million of held-to-
maturity investments. This represents an increase of $392,000 or 4.6 percent in available-for sale
investments and an increase of $16.7 million or 286.3 percent in held-to-maturity investments in 2007
over the same period in 2006. Investments at December 31, 2005 totaling $ 27.2 million are comprised of
$14.2 million of available-for-sale and $13.0 million of held-to maturity investments. This represents a
decrease of $5.6 million or (39.5) percent in available-for sale investments and a decrease of $7.2 or
(55.2) percent in held-to-maturity investments in 2006 over the same period in 2005, Available funds are
first used for loans, then investments, and the remainder sold as Federal funds. The primary source of
funds is the deposit base, and, if needed, investment maturities, calls and sales. The Bank's investment
portfolio is concentrated in U.S. Government Agency securities. Table 7 provides a detatled analysis of
the investment portfolio.
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December 31, 2007:

Available-for-Sale:

U.S. Gov & Agency Securities

Mortgage-backed Securities

AMF-ARM Mutual Fund
Total Available-for-Sale

Held-to-Maturity

U.S. Gov & Agency Securities

Mortgage-backed Securities
Total Held-to-Maturity

December 31, 2006:
Available-for-Sale:

Mortgage-backed Securities
AMF-ARM Mutual Fund
Total Available-for-Sale

Held-to-Maturity

U.8. Gov & Agency Securities

Mortgage-backed Securities
Total Held-to-Maturity

December 31, 2005:
Available-for-Sale:

U.S. Gov & Agency Securities
AMF-ARM Mutual Fund
Total Available-for-Sale

Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Gov & Agency Securities

Total Held-to-Maturity

Table 7
Investment Securities

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost (rains Losses Value
8 502,731 3 - i - 502,73t
647,610 - (14,934} 632,676
2,000,000 - (130,478) 7.869,522
$ 9,150,341 $ - ) (145,412) 9,004,929
$ 18,042,039 $ 6,486 3 - 18,048,525
4,468,851 - {40.3319) 4428512
3 22,510,890 3 6,486 3 {40,339} 22,477,037
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Vaiue
3 751,712 3 - b (24,992) 726,720
8,000,000 - {114,169} 7,885,831
3 8,751,712 h) - $ (139,161) 8,612,551
5 490,822 $ - $ (447} 499375
5,327,158 - {93,365) 5,233,793
3 5,826,980 $ - b {93,812) 5,733,168
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Vajue
3 6,409,507 $ - b (75,192) 6,334,315
8,000,000 - (97,859} 7,902,141
$ 14409507 3 - 3 (173,051) 14,236,456
2 13,000,760 % - 3 (147.271} 12,853 489
§ 13,000,760 b - 3 (147,271 12,853,489
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The following Table & presents information regarding the amortized cost, fair value, average
vield and maturity of the investment portfolio.

U.S. Government Agencies
Mortgage Backed Securities
Other Securities

Total

Weighted Average Yield
U.8. Government Agem‘;ies
Mortgage Backed Securities

Other Securities
Fotal

Deposits

Tabie 8: Investment Portfolio Maturities

December 31, 2007
Due in One Due in One Due Over Fair Market
Year or Less Year Five Years Total Value

$18,042,039 3 502,731 - $18,544,770 $18,351,255
- 4,644,995 471,466 5,116,451 5,061,189
8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 7.869,522
$26.042.039 § - 5147726 8471466 $31.661.231 §31.481.966

4.14% 4.68% - 4.15%

- 4.30% 4.22% 4.30%

5.06% - - 5.06%

4.40% 4.34% 4.22% 4.38%

The increase in earning assets in 2007 was funded primarily by increases in the Bank’s deposit
base. In 2007, average deposits increased by $40.4 million or 34.5 percent over 2006. In 2006, average
deposits increased by $41.2 million or 54.6 percent over 2005. Non-interest bearing demand deposits
increased $13.6 million or 52.6 percent over 2006; and increased $5.4 million or 26.3 percent in 2006

from 2003,

The Bank's average cost of interest-bearing deposits decreased 13 basis points to 3.15 percent in
2007 from 3.28 percent in 2006, primarily due to a lower market interest rate environment. The Bank's
average cost of interest-bearing deposits increased 137 basis points to 3.28 percent in 2006 from .91
percent in 2005, primarily due to a rising market interest rate environment. The Bank's average cost of
total deposits declined 19 basis points in 2007, but increased 144 basis points in 2006 over 2005.
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Table 9
Average Deposits and Average Rates Paid
For the Years Ending December 31,

2007 206 Pl
% of % of % of

Average  Average  Tofal  Average  Average  Total  Average  Avemge  Totdl
Balance ~ Rate  Deposits  Balance Rate  Deposits  Balance  Rate  Deposits

{in thousands)

Deposits:
Interest Bearing Demand

Money Market and Savings ~ § 110,412 309%  701% § 83625 32% 7i4%  §504% L79% 611%
Time Deposits $100,000 ormore 6,851 4.03% 4.4% 7073 3.75% 6.0% 4052 121% 54%
Time Deposits Under $100,000 607 3.87% 0.4% 490 3.88% 0.4% 185 2.16% 0.2%

Tota! Interest Bearing Deposits 117,960 35%  74%% 91188 3% TS  M6T L9%  TLT%

Demand Deposits 39,518 0.00%  231% 25902 0.00%  221% 20308 0.00%  22.3%
Total Deposits §157478  236%  1000% $11709%  2.55%  1000% $TSI8L L% 100.0%

A —— M ——— W—————eTT£37 Tttt ittt Mttt et STTCYNPYOMTET T PP —t. et
R TTITITIY AN TTATTITT AT WRRT—I.  FRaa— ————. s, e a——

Large Time Deposits Maturities
Analysis of Time Deposits of $100,600 or More

. Three Months Over Three to Over Twelve

Total Deposits Or Less Twelve Months Months
As of December 31, 2007

hY 22,399 3 21,879 3 520 3 -
As of December 31, 2006

5 8,021 $ 2,590 $ 5,431 5 -
As of December 31, 20058

3 7,521 b 200 $ 7,321 $ -
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Capital Resources

At December 31, 2007 shareholders' equity was $28.3 million, an increase of $1.7 or 6.4 percent
over 2006. Sharehoiders' equity was $26.6 million at year-end 2006, an increase of $1.9 million, or 7.7
percent over the $24.7 million in sharehoiders” equity at December 31, 2005. The increases in
shareholders’ equity were primarily attributable to the retention of net income and the impact of exercised
stock options and stock-based compensation.

In 1989, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) established risk-based capital
guidelines requiring banks to maintain certain ratios of “Qualifying capital” to “risk-weighted assets.”
Under the guidelines, qualifyving capital is classified into two tiers, referred fo as Tier 1 (core) and Tier 2
(supplementary) capital. See "Supervision and Regulation - Capital Standards under FDICIA" on page
15. Caurrently, the Bank's Tier 1 capital consists of common shareholders' equity, though other
instruments, such as certain types of preferred stock can also be included in Tier 1 capital. Tier 2 capital
consists of eligible reserves for possible loan losses and qualifying subordinated notes and debentures.
Total capital is the sum of Tier 1 plus Tier 2 capital. Risk-weighted assets are calculated by applying risk
percentages specified by the FDIC to categories of both balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet
obligations.

At year-end 1990, the FDIC also adopted a leverage ratio requirement. This ratio supplements
the risk-based capital ratios and is defined as Tier 1 capital divided by guarterly average assets during the
reporting period. The requirement established a minimum leverage ratio of 3.0 percent for the highest
rated bank and ratios 100 to 200 basis points higher for most banks. Furthermore, as mandated by the
FDIC Improvement Act of 1991, in 1993 the FDIC began assessing risk-based deposit insurance
assessments based upon financial institutions' capital resources and "management strength". To qualify
for the lowest insurance premiums as indicated in the following table, “well-capitalized” financial
institutions must maintain risk-based Tier 1 and total capital ratios of at least 6.0 percent and 10.0 percent
respectively. “Well-capitalized” financial institutions must also maintain a leverage ratio equal to or
exceeding 5.0 percent.

The following table shows the Bank’s risk-based capital ratios and leverage ratios at December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. : : :

"Well
Minimum Capitalized"
Capital Ratios Requirements Reguirements 2007 2006 2005
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets 4.00% 5.00% 13.26% 16.46% 21.46%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets 4.00% 6.00% 19.89% 22.70% 31.41%
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets 8.00% 10.00% 21.00% 23.82% 32.49%

Market Risk Management
Overview

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and rates. The Bank’s
market risk arises primarily from interest rate risk inherent in its loan and deposit functions. The goal for
managing the assets and liabilities of the Bank is fo maximize shareholder value and earnings while
maintaining a high guality balance sheet without exposing the Bank to undue interest rate risk. The Board
of Directors has overali responsibility for the interest rate risk management policies. The Bank has an
ALCCQ Committee that establishes and monitors guidelines to control the sensitivity of earnings and
equity to changes in interest rates.
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Asset/Liability Management.

, Activities involved in asset/liability management include, but are not limited to, lending,
investing in securities, accepting and placing deposits, and borrowings. Interest rate risk is the primary
market risk associated with asset/liability management. Sensitivity of earnings to market interest rate
changes arises when yields on assets change in a different time period, in a different direction, or in 2
different magnitude from that of interest costs on liabilities. To mitigate interest rate risk, the structure of
the balance sheet is managed with the goal that movements of interest rates on assets and liabilities are
correlated and contribute to earnings even in periods of volatile interest rates. The asset/liability
management policy sets limits on the acceptable amount of variance in net interest margin and market
value of equity under changing interest environments, The Bank uses simuilation models to forecast
earnings, net interest margin and market value of equity.

Simulation of earmings is the primary tool used to measure the sensitivity of eamings {o interest rate
changes. Using computer-modeling techniques, the Bank is able to estimate the potential impact of
changing interest rates on earnings. At the beginning of each quarter, detailed information regarding the
Bank’s balance sheet is input into the interest rate risk model, including the types of loans, securities,
deposits and borrowings, the repricing timing and characteristics of all interest earning assets and interest
bearing liabilities, and the contractual provisions of the Bank’s financial instruments, including borrower
prepayment options. The mode]l holds the Bank’s balance sheet size constant, though cash flows
generated by various assets and labilities are “reinvested” into similar instruments at prevailing market
rates for simulation purposes.

The financia! performance of the balance sheet is modeled using a variety of market interest rate
scenarios in order to evaluate the relative sensitivity of the Bank to various changes in market interest rate
conditions. The scenarios inciude a 200 basis point rising rate forecast, an n unchanged interest rate
forecast, and a 200 basis point falling rate forecast. The assumed change in the rate enviromment is
immediate and held constant for period of analysis.

The following table summarizes the effect on net interest income (NII) and economic value of

equity {(EVE) of a & 100, 200 and 300 basis points change in interest rates as measured against a constant
rate (no change) scenario.
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Interest Rate Risk Simulation of
Net Interest Income and Economic Value of Equity
as of December 31, 2007
(dellars in thousands)

$ Change in NIX $ Change in EVE
from Current 12 from Current 12
Month Horizon Month Horizon
Variation from a
constant rate scenario
+300bp $ 957 3 1,358
+200bp 646 579
+100bp 329 335
0 bp - -
-100bp : (381) (729)
~200bp (817) (2,014)
-300bp (1,574 {4,054)

The simulations of earnings do not incorporate any growth in the Bank, any management actions,
which might moderate the negative consequences of interest rate deviations, and use highly unlikely
market conditions. The purpose is to evaluate the relative sensitivity of the financial performance of the
Bank to changes in market interest rates, rather than to project likely actual results.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Interest rate sensitivity is a function of the repricing characteristics of the portfolio of assets and
liabilities. These repricing characteristics are the time frames within which the interest-bearing assets and
liabilities are subject to change in interest rates either at replacement, repricing or maturity. Interest rate
sensitivity management focuses on the maturity of assets and labilities and their repricing during periods
of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity is measured as the difference between the
volumes of assets and liabilities in the current portfolio that are subject to repricing at various time
horizons. The differences are known as interest sensitivity gaps. A positive cumulative gap may be
equated to an asset sensitive position. An asset sensifive position in a rising interest rate environment will
cause a bank’s inferest rate margin to expand. This results as floating or variable rate loans reprice more
rapidly than fixed rate certificates of deposit that reprice as they mature over time. Conversely, a
declining interest rate environment will cause the opposite effect. A negative cumulative gap may be
equated to a lability sensitive position. A lability sensitive position in a rising interest rate environment
will cause a bank’s interest rate margin to contract, while a declining interest rate environment will have
the oppasite effect,

Inflation

The impact of inflation on a financial institution differs significantly from that exerted on
manufacturing, or other commercial concemns, primarily because its assets and liabilities are largely
monetary. In general, inflation primarily affects the Bank through its effect on market rates of interest,
which affects the Bank’s ability to attract loan and deposit customers. Inflation affects the growth of total
assets by impacting the level of loan demand, and potentially adversely affects capital adequacy because
Ioan growth in inflationary periods can increase at rates higher than the rate that capital grows through
retention of earnings that may be generated in the future, In addition to its effects on interest rates,
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inflation increases overall operating expenses. Inflation has not had a material effect upon the results of
operations of the Bank during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

' Liquidity

Liquidity is a measure of the Bank's ability to convert assets into cash with minimum loss.
Liquidity consists of cash and accounts and time deposits due from other banks, Federal Funds sold,
Available for Sale securities, and Held to Maturity Securities within three months of maturity or the most
likely call date. Securities that are pledged as collateral for outstanding borrowings are excluded from the
Bank’s liquidity. Liquidity at December 31, 2007, totaled $59.3 million, or 33.5 percent of total deposits.
Liquidity at December 31, 2006, totaled $61.5 million, or 43.4 percent of total deposits. The Bank's
policy is to maintain an overall liquidity ratio (primary, secondary and other liquidity reserves, including
borrowing facilities with third parties) of 20 percent, or greater of total deposits and other short term
liabilities. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank's overall liquidity ratio was 61.0 percent as compared to
66.0 percent at December 31, 2006. The objective of liquidity management is to ensure that the Bank has
available funds to meet all present and future financial obligations and to take advantage of business
opportunities as they arise. Financial obligations arise from withdrawals of deposits, repayment on
maturity of purchased funds, extension of loans or other forms of credit, payment of operating expenses
and payment of dividends.

Core deposits, which consist of all deposits other than time deposits, have provided the Bank with
a sizable source of relatively stable and low-cost funds. The Bank's average core deposits funded 80.8
percent of average total assets of $185.5 million for the year ended 2007 and 76.8 percent of average total
assets of $142.6 million for the year ended 2006. Shareholders’ equity and time deposit accounts
provided most of the remaining funding.

Liquidity is also supported by the Bank’s borrowings. The Bank may borrow up to $20 million
overnight on an unsecured basis from three of its primary correspondent banks. As of December 31,
2007, there were no amounts ouistanding under these arrangements. The Bank also has a borrowing
facility with the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™)} collateralized by certain of its investments and
loans. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank’s maximum financing availability assuming adequate
gualifying collateral was pledged to the FIILB totaled $53.9 million, or 25 percent of total assets as of the
most recent reporting period. At December 31, 2007 the Bank had $64.4 million in loans and $8.5
million in investment securities pledged to the FHLB. Based upon that collateral, the Bank’s actual
borrowing capacity at the FHLB equaled $39.3 million at year-end 2007.

The maturity distribution of certificates of deposit is set forth in Table 10 below for the periods
presented. These deposits are generally more rate sensitive than other deposits and, therefore, are more
likely to be withdrawn to obtain higher vields elsewhere, if available.

Table 10: Certificates of Deposit Maturities
December 31, 2007

(dollars in thousands)

Less than $100.000 Over $100,000 Total
Three months or less $ 313 3 21,879 $22,192
Over three months through six months 435 100 535
Ovwer six months through twelve months 54 420 474
Over twelve months - -
Total $ 802 8 22,399 $23.201
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Asset and Liability Management

The largest component of the Bank's earnings is net interest income, which can fluctuate widely

_when significant interest rate movements occur. The Bank's management is responsible for minimizing

the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk and assuring an adequate level of liquidity. This is accomplished
by developing objectives, goals and strategies designed to enhance profitability and performance.

Ongoing management of the Bank's interest rate sensitivity limits interest rate risk by controlling
the mix, repricing characteristics and maturity of assets and liabilities. Management regularly reviews the
Bank's position and evaluates alternative sources and uses of funds, as well as changes in externa) factors.
Various methods are used to achieve and maintain the desired rate sensitivity position including the sale
or purchase of assets and product pricing.

In order to ensure that sufficient funds are available for loan growth and deposit withdrawals, as
well as to provide for general needs, the Bank must maintain an adeguate level of liguidity. Both assets
and liabilities provide sources of liquidity. Asset liquidity comes from the Bank's ability to convert short-
term investments into cash and from the maturity and repayment of loans and investment securities.
Liability liquidity is provided by the Bank's ability to attract deposits and borrowing funds when
necessary and advantageous. The primary source of liability liquidity is the Bank's customer base, which
provides core deposit growth. The overall liquidity position of the Bank is closely monitored and
evaluated regularly. Management believes the Bank's liguidity sources at December 31, 2007 were
adequate to meet its operating needs going forward into the foreseeable future.

Table 11
Rate Sensitivity Assets/Liabilities
as of December 31, 2007
{Dollar Amounts in Thousands)
Three Months Over Three to Over One Year Qver Five
or Less Tweive Months  Through Five Years Years Total

Assets

Fed Funds Sold & Other Investments $ 430 8 - 5 - - § 4301

Interest-Bearing Deposits - 3,463 496 - 3,959
Federal Reserve Bank and Other Stocks 1,328 - - - 1328

Securities 8,008 18,545 4,909 54 11516

Loans 39610 11,842 52,628 16,101 120,181
Total Rate Sensitive Assets 91,969 33,850 38,033 16,155 200,007
Liabilities

Savings and Money Market 10,050 30,153 68,695 2,527 111,425

Time Deposits 22192 1,009 - - 23201

Other Borrowed Money - - - - -
Total Rate Sensitive Liabilities 32242 3,162 68,605 2527 134,626
Interest Rate Sensitivity GAP $ 597127 § 2688 § (10663  § 13628 § 65381
Interest Rate Sensitivity GAP Ratio 29.0% 1.3% -5.2% 6.6% 31.8%
Cumulative interest Rate Sensitivity GAP $ 50727 % 82415 § 51,753 § 65,388 § 130,762
Cumulative Interest Rate Sensitivity GA? 25.0% 30.3% 25.1% 31.8% -
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Effect of Changing Prices

The results of operations and financial conditions presented in this report are based on historical
cost information and are unadjusted for the effects of inflation.

Since the assets and liabilities of banks are primarily monetary in nature (pavable determinable
amounts), the performance of the Bank is affected more by changes in interest rates than by inflation.
Interest rates generally increase as the rate of inflation increases, but the magnitude of the change in
interest rates and inflation rates may not be the same.

The effect of inflation on banks is normally not as significant as its influence on those businesses
that have large investments in plants and inventories. During periods of high inflation, there are normally
corresponding increases in the money supply, and banks will normally experience above average growth
in assets, loans and deposits. Also, increases in the price of goods and services will result in increased
operating expenses.

Table 12
Return on Equity and Assets
Key Financial Ratios
Year Ended December 31,

{ratios are computed on average balances)

2007 2006 2005
Retumn on Average Assets 0.57% 0.48% -0.84%
Return on Average Equity 3.83% 2.73% -5.01%
Dividend Payout Ratio NA NA NA
Average Equity to Assets Ratio 14.78% 17.56% 16.76%
‘ 2007 2006 2005
Return on Average Assets 0.57% 0.48% -0.84%
Return on Average Equity 31.83% 2.73% -5.01%
Dividend Payout Ratio NA NA NA
Average Equity to Assets Ratio 14.78% 17.56% 16.76%

Contractual Obligations

The known contractual obligations of the Bank at December 31, 2007 are as follows (0007s):
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Within One to Three to After

a— One Year Three Years Five Years  Five Years Total

Operating lease obligations § 521§ 1,066 § 788 § 1,650 $ 4,045
Total $ 521 % 108 § 788 § 1,650 § 4,045

Debt obligations and operating lease obligations are discussed in NotesJ and P of the Notes to
Financial Statements contained in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

We believe that we will be able to meet our contractual obligations as they come due through the
maintenance of adequate cash levels. We expect to maintain adequate cash levels through liquidity
management, profitability, loan and sccurities repayment and maturity activity, and continued deposit
gathering activities. We have in place various borrowing mechanisms for both shori-term and long-term
liquidity needs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our obligations also include off-balance sheet arrangements consisting of loan-related commitments,
of which only a portion are expected to be funded. At December 31, 2007, our loan-related commitments,
including standby letters of credit and financial guarantees, totaled $25.0 million. The commitments
which result in a funded loan increase our profitability through net interest income. Therefore, during the
year, we manage our overall liquidity taking into consideration funded and unfunded commitments as a
percentage of our liguidity sources. Our liquidity sources, as described in "Liquidity,” have been and are
expected to be sufficient to meet the cash requirements of our lending activities. For further information
on loan commitments see Note P of the Notes to Financial Statements contained in "ltem 8 Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data."

Risk Management

_ The Bank’s management has adopted, as part of its ALCO Policy, a Risk Management Plan to

ensure the proper control and management of all risk factors inherent in the operations of the Bank.
Specifically, the credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, fransaction risk, compliance risk, strategic
risk, reputation risk, price risk and foreign exchange risk, can all affect the market risk exposure of the
Bank. These specific risk factors are not mutually exclusive. It is recognized that any product or service
offered by the Bank may expose the Bank to one or more of these risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk to earnings or capital from an obligor’s failure to meet the terms
of any contract or to otherwise fail to perform as agreed. Credit risk is found in all activities where
success depends on counter party, issuer or borrower performance. Credit risk arises through the
extension of loans s, certain securities, and letters of credit.

Credit risk in the investment portfolio and correspondent bank accounts is addressed through

defined limits in the Bank’s ALCO Policy. In addition, certain securities carry insurance to enhance
credit quality of the bond. Limitations on industry conceniration, geographic boundaries, and contract
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maturities are designed to reduce credit risk. The ALCQO Committee and the Board of Directors are
provided with information to appropriately identify, measure, control and monitor the credit risk of the
Bank.

Credit risk in the loan portfolio is also addressed through defined limits in the Bank’s Loan
Policy. Limitations on industry concentration, geographic boundaries, aggregate customer borrowings
and standards on loan quality aiso are designed to reduce loan credit risk The Loan Committee and the
Board of Directors are provided with information to appropriately identify, measure, control and monitor
the credit risks within the Joan portfolio.

Implicit in lending activities is the risk that losses will occur and that the amount of such losses
will vary over time. Consequently, the Bank maintains an allowance for ioan losses by charging a
provision for loan losses to earnings. When a loan is determined to be a loss, the balance is charged
against the allowance for loan losses. The Bank’s allowance for loan losses 1s maintained at a level
considered by the Bank’s management to be adequate to provide for estimated probable losses inherent in
the existing portfolio, as well as unused commitments to provide financing, including commitments under
commercial and standby letters of credit.

The process by which the Bank determines the appropriate allowance for loan losses requires the
exercise of considerable judgment. The amount of losses that actually occur can vary significantly from
these estimated amounts. The Bank employs a systemic methodology that is intended to reduce the
differences between estimated and actual losses.

Central to the Bank’s credit risk management is its loan risk rating system. FEach credit is
assigned an initial credit rating, which is reviewed periodically by the Bank’s Chief Credit Officer,
independent credit reviewers and regulatory examiners, Risk ratings are adjusted as necessary.

Based on the risk rating system, specific allowances are established in cases where management
has identified significant conditions or circumstances related to that credit that heighten the need for
closer monitoring or increase the likelihood that the full and timely repayment of both the loan’s principal
and interest may be at doubt.

The Bank considers a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the Bank will be unable to
collect all amounts due (principal and interest) according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Measurement of impairment is based upon the expected future cash flows of an impaired loan which are
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, or measured by reference o an observable market value, if
one exists, or the fair value of the collateral for a collateral-dependent loan. The Bank selects the
measurement method on a loan-to-loan basis except that collateral-dependent ioans, for which foreclosure
is probable, are measured at the fair value of the coilateral.

Included in the Bank’s methodology for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance is
management’s consideration of all known relevant internal and external factors that may affect the loan’s
collectiblity.  This includes management’s estimates of the amount necessary for concentrations,
economic uncertainties, the volatility of the market value of the collateral, and other relevant factors.
The conditions evaluated in connection with the periodic analysis of allowance include, but are not
limited to, the following conditions that existed as of the balance sheet date:

. Changes in lending policies and procedures, inciuding underwriting standards and collection,
charge-off, and recovery practices.

. Changes in national and local economic and business conditions and developments, including the
condition of various market segments.

. Changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio.

. Changes in the experience, ability, and depth of lending management and staff.

. Changes in the trend of the volume and severity of past due and classified loans; and trends in the
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volume of non-accrual loans, troubled debt restructurings and other loan modifications.

. Changes in the guality of the institution's loan review system and the degree of oversight by the
institution's board of directors. '

. The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit, and changes in the level of such
concentrations.

. The effect of external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the

level of estimated credit Josses on the loan portfolio.

Also considered as factors in determining the adequacy of the reserve are: 1) the historical loss
experience on a loan category by category basis; and 2) a comparative analysis between the Bank's
internal loan loss reserve methodology and the "Reasonableness Test" as detailed in the Interagency
Policy Statement of the Allowance for Loan Losses, as published by the regulators. The quarterly
analysis of the general reserve is accompanied by sufficient narrative detail to support Bank
management's conclusions.
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Interest Rate Risk

During periods of changing interest rates, the ability to reprice interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities can influence net interest income, the net interest margin, and consequently the Bank’s
ability fo produce net earnings and to maintain adequate capital levels. Interest rate risk is managed by
attempting to control the spread between rates earned on interest-carning assets and the rates paid on
interest-bearing liabilities within the constraints imposed by market competition in the Bank’s service
area.

Interest rate risk is discussed above, under “Market Risk Management,” beginning on page 42.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk to earnings or capital resulting from the Bank’s inability to meet its
obligations when they come due without incurring unacceptable losses. The objective of liquidity
management is to ensure the continuous availability of funds to meet the demands of depositors, investors
and borrowers. The ALCO Committee is responsible for structuring the balance sheet to meet these
needs. On a daily basis liquidity is managed by maintaining acceptable levels of Federal funds in
conjunction with cash flow from interest and principal payments from time deposits from other financial
institutions, investment securities and loans. To meet unexpected demands, lines of credit are maintained
with correspondent banks. The early withdrawal of funds held in time deposits with other financial
institutions serves as a comtingent source of funds. Access to FHLB advances are available to meet
liquidity needs. Increases in deposit rates can serve as a contingent means of raising funds to increase
liguidity.

For the Bank, sources of funds normally include payments of loans, interest payments on
investments and growth in deposits. Uses of funds include withdrawal of deposits, interest paid on
deposits, increases in loan balances, purchases of investments, the placement of funds in time deposits
with other financial institutions and other operating expenses.

By reference to the Statement of Cash Flows on page 64 of this report, comparisons can be made
to the changes in the Bank’s liguidity position. Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities totaled
$2,128,000 for 2007 compared with net cash provided by operating activities of $1,046,000 for 2006 and
($490,000) for 2005. The generation of a positive cash flow reflects the ability of the Bank’s current asset
base to provide liguidity from its ongoing operations.

Since the primary sources and uses of funds for the Bank are loans and deposits, the relationship
between net loans and total deposits provides a useful measure of the Bank’s liquidity. However, the
FHLB provides alternative sources of funds for the Bank’s and enables the Bank to efficiently manage the
balance sheet duration. Typically, the closer the ratio of loans-to-deposits is to 100 percent, the more
reliant the Bank is on its loan portfolio to provide for shori-term liquidity needs. Since repayment of
loans tends to be less predictable than the maturity of investments and other liquid resources, the higher
the ratio of loans-to-deposit, the less liquid are the Bank’s assets. For 2007, the Bank’s average loan-to-
deposits ratio was 71.9 percent, while for 2006 the comparable ratio was 74.5 percent.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by Item 7A of Form 10-K is contained in the “Market Risk
Management” section of Item 7-“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations”™ beginning on page 42.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
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| VALUE THE DIFFERENCE

] =| ?. ( Vavrinek, Tring, Day & Co., LLP
Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Commerce National Bank

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial condition of Commerce National Bank as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related statements of operations, changes in shareholders' equity,
and cash flows for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2004, and 2005. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Bank's management. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentat:on We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
iinancial position of Commerce National Bank as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. .

%vm&é’ Triot, Do s, LLP

Laguna Hills, California
February 27, 2008

25231 Paseo De Alicia, Suite 100 Laguna Hills, CA 82653  Tel 940.788.0838 Fax; B40.768.8408  www videpa.com
FRESNO ¢ LAGUNA HILLS « PALO ALTO e PLEASANTON o RANCHO CUCAMONGA
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ASSETS

COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Cash and Due from Banks
Federal Funds Sold and Other Investiments
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Banks

Investment Securities Available for Sale
Investment Securities Held to Maturity
Total Investment Securities

Commercial
Consumer

Construction and Land Development

Real Estate - Other
Total Loans

Deferred Loan Premiums, Costs and Fees, Net
Allowance for Loan Losses

Net Loans

Premises and Equipment, Net
Federal Reserve Bank and Other Stock - at Cost
Accrued Interest and Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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2007

2006

$

3,302,110
43,023,128

4,369,917
46,506,000

46,325,238

3,959,000

50,875,917

1,973,000

9,004,929
22,510,850

8,612,551
5,826,980

31,515,819

28,981,732
22,757,816
20,838,843
47,602,664

14,439,531

22,648,053
23,552,945
19,958,785
32,294,540

(

120,181,055
417,547

1,488,042)

98,454,323
387,949
1,225,000)

119,110,560

1,276,976
1,328,450
2,276,117

97,617,272

634,453
1,201,950
1,911,107

$ 205,792,160

$

168,653,230




COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
DECEMBER 31, 2607 AND 2006

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Noninterest-bearing Demand Deposits

Savings Accounts

NOW and Money Market Accounts
Time Deposits Under $100,000
Time Deposits $100,000 and Over

Total Deposits

Accrued Interest and Other Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Commitments and Contingencies - Note P

Shareholders' Equity:

Common Stock - 10,000,000 Shares Authorized,
$5.00 Par Value; 2,660,593 and 2,654,058 Shares
Issued and Qutstanding at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively

Surplus

Accumulated Deficit

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income-

Unrecognized Loss on Available-for-Sale Securities

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2007 2006

$ 42,216,468 $ 30,550,548
297,278 517,202
111,127,866 102,220,682
802,368 347,715
22,398,838 8,021,320
176,842,818 141,657,467
678,001 436,663
177,520,819 142,094,130
13,302,965 13,270,290
18,161,346 17,524,165

( 3,047,558) ( 4,096,194)

( 145.412) ( 139,161)
28,271,341 26,559,100

$ 205,792,160

$ 168,653,230

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and Fees on Loans
Interest on Investment Securities
Other Interest Income
Total Interest Income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Savings, NOW and Money Market Deposits
Interest on Time Deposits
Interest o Borrowings
Total Interest Expense

NET INTEREST INCOME

Provision for Loan Losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

NONINTEREST INCOME

Service Charges, Fees and Other Income

Gain on Sale of Loans and Referral Fees
Total Noninterest Income

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Occupancy and Equipment Expenses
Other Expenses
Total Noninterest Expense

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Income Taxes (Benefit)

NET INCOME (LOSS)

NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE - DILUTED

2007 2006 2005
$ 8,751,199 § 6760784 § 3078187
695,432 867,140 743 554
2,605,507 1,551,849 767,850
12,052.138 9,179,773 4,589,591
3411818 2,702,326 903,619
302,673 284,685 134263
399 - 12,017
3,714,890 2.987,011 1,049,899
8,337,248 6,192,762 3,539,692
304,500 439,000 475,850
8,032,748 5,753,762 3,063,842
184,694 113,560 62375
529,737 458,286 41211
714,631 571,846 103,586
4 441,417 3,603,173 2,256 756
965,204 597,755 541,483
2,771,313 1,919,539 1,131 490
8,177,934 6,120.467 3,929,729
569,245 205141 ( 762,301)
(479301}  ( 479.200) 800
§ 1048636 S 684,341 $( 763,101)
$ 039 $ 026 0.42)
3 039 3§ 0.25 0.42)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2607, 2006 and 2005

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income {Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used inj Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Deferred Tax Benefit
Prevision for Loan Losses
Stock-based Compensation
Other Items, Net
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Decrease (Increase) in Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Banks
Net Increase in Loans
Increase in Federal Reserve Bank and Other Bank Stock
Purchases of Available-for-Sale Securities
Proceeds From Maturities of Available-for-Sale Securities
Purchases of Held-to-Maturity Securities
Proceeds From Maturities of Held-to-Maturity Securities
Proceeds from Sales of Premises and Equipment
Purchases of Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase in Non-interest Bearing Demand Deposits
Net Increase (Decrease) in Savings
Net Increase in NOW and Money Market Accounts
Net Increase in Time Deposits
Proceeds from Secondary Common Stock Offering
Proceeds from Stock Options Exercised

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest Paid

Taxes Paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements,
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2007

2006 2005
§ 1,048,636 § 684341 $( 763,101)
325,117 268,684 242,631
( 488,000) ( 484,000) -
304,500 439,000 475,850
603,486 678,530 .
334,730 ( 540,406) ( 445300)
2,125,469 1,046,149 ( 489,620)
( 1,986,000) 3,999,000 128,662
( 21,768,190) (33,027.702) (41,017,223)
( 1265500) ( 227400) { 558,900)
( 496487) { 2,000,000) ( 3,905,116)
97,857 7,631,500 1,000,000
( 18,037,558) ; (10,273,591
1,353,649 7,173,779 4,800,000
- 70,391 .
[ 967,640) ( 10475) ( 131,288)
(41,930,869) (16,390,907) (45.757,456)
11,665,920 7,720,778 11,239,131
( 219924) 28,528 135270
8,907,184 44,398,676 15,993,684
14,832,171 642,070 7387,620
. . 17,447,210
65,370 495274 137,500
35051721 5385326 52,540,415
( 4,550,679) 37,640,568 2,293,339
50,875,917 12,935,349 10,642,010
$ 46325238 $ 50,875,917 $ 12,935,349
$ 3982426 $ 2938202 $ 994167
$ 5,809 $ 800 $ 800




COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2606

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Commerce National Bank (the “Bank™) is a commercial bank incorporated in 2003 in the State of
California and headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Bank is chartered by the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “OCC”) and its deposit accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to the maximum amount under the terms allowed by
the federal regulations. The Bank has been organized as a single operating entity and operates
full service branch offices in Fullerton and Newport Beach, California. The Bank provides a wide
range of banking products and services to predominately small and middie-market businesses and
individuals.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks, and temporary investments that
include federal funds sold and interest-hearing balances due from other banks. Cash and cash
equivalents generaily have a maturity of 90 days or less at the time of purchase.

Cash and Due from Banks

Banking regulations require that hanks maintain a percentage of their deposits as reserves in cash
or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank. The Bank was in compliance with its reserve
reguirements as of December 31, 2067.

The Bank maintains deposit accounts at several correspondent banks with balances that may
exceed federal deposit insurance limits. The Bank has not experienced any losses in such
accounts.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Banks

Time deposits with other financial institutions typically have an original maturity of three months
to two vears and are carried at cost.

Investment Securities

The Bank classifies as held-to-maturity those debt securities that the Bank has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity. Securities held-to-maturity are accounted for at cost and adjusted
for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. Purchase premiums and discounts are
recognized in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturily. For
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) the amortization or accretion is based on estimated average
lives of the securities.  The lives of these securities can fluctnate based on the amount of
prepayments received on the underlying collateral of securities.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Investment Securities - Continued

Investments not classified as trading securities nor as held to maturity securities are classified as
available-for-sale securities and recorded at fair value, Unrealized gains or losses on available-
for-sale securities are excluded from net income and reported as an amount net of taxes as a
separate component of other comprehensive income inciuded in shareholders’ equity. Premiums
or discounts on held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities are amortized or accreted into
income using the interest method. Realized gains or losses on sales of held-to-maturity or
available-for-sale securities are recorded using the specific identification method.

Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below
their cost that are other-than-temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their
fair value. The related write-downs are included in eamnings as realized losses. In estimating
other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers the length of time and the extent
to which the fair value has been less than cost, the financial condition and near-term prospects of
the issuer, and the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period
of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair vatue.

Loans

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeabie future or
until maturity or payoff are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal, reduced by an allowance
for loan losses, and net of any deferred fees or costs on originated loans, or unamortized
premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan
origination costs are defetred and amortized as an adjustment to interest income over the life of
the loan.

The Bank determines a loan to be delinquent when payments have not been made according to
contractual terms, typically evidenced by nonpayment of a monthly installment that is past due
30 days or more. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days
or more delinquent or when, in the opinion of management, there is reasonable doubt as to
collectability. When loans are placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not
collected is reversed against current period inferest income. Income on nonaccrual loans is
subsequently recognized only to the extent that cash is received and the loan’s principal balance
is deemed collectible. Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are brought
current with respect to interest and principal and future payments are reasonably assured.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Allowance for Loan Losses - Continued

The allowance for loan losses is based on estimates and ultimate losses may vary from current
estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they
are reported in results of operations in the periods in which they become known. The allowance
is increased by provisions for loan losses charged to expense. The balance of a loan deemed
uncoliectibie is charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that
collectability of the principal is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance.,

Management makes periodic credit reviews of the loan portfolio and considers current economic
conditions, historical credit loss experience and other factors in determining the adequacy of the
allowance. This evaluation does not include the effect of expected losses on specific loans or
groups of loans that are related to future events or expected changes in economic conditions.
Although management uses the best information available to make these estimates, future
adjustments to the allowance may be necessary due to economic, operating, regulatory and other
conditions that may be beyond the Bank’s control.

The allowance for loan loss consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The
specific component relates to classified and criticized loans. The general component covers non-
classified and non-criticized ioans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for
qualitative factors. The unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could
affect management’s estimate of probable losses.

The allowance for toan losses is adjusted by charges to income and decreased by charge-offs (net
of recoveries). Management's periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on
known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability
to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, and current economic conditions.

Also included in the aliowance for loan losses are provisions for loans that have declined in value
and which management has determined to be impaired Management deems a loan to be
impaired when it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all principal and interest
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Measurement of impairment is based
on the expected future cash flows of an impaired loan, which are to be discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate, or measured by reference to an observable market value, if one exists, or
the fair value of the collateral for a collateral-dependent loan. The Bank selects the measurement
method on a loan-by-loan basis except that coliateral-dependent loans for which foreclosure is
probable are measured at the fair value of the collateral.
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COMMERCE NATIONAIL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2046

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, which
range from three to five years for furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining lease term and the subsequent option
period that is likely o be exercised. Expenditures for betterments or major repairs are capitalized
and those for ordinary repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred. Equipment
and leasehold improvements are reviewed for impairment periodically and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable.

Federal Reserve Bank and Other Stock — at Cost

The Bank, as a member of the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”)} and the Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB”) systems, is required to maintain investments in the capital stock of the FHLB and
FRB. No ready market exists for these stocks and they have no quoted market value.

Advertising Costs

The Bank expenses the costs of advertising in the year incurred.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, which recognizes a
deferred tax liability or asset representing the tax effects, based on current tax law, of future
deductible or taxable amounts attributable to events that have been recognized in the financial
statements. Annual deferred tax expense (benefit) is equal to the change in the deferred tax
liability (asset) account from the beginning to the end of the year. A current tax asset or liability
is recognized for the estimated taxes refundable or payable for the current year. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely
than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes -— an Inierpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,”
(“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition: threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be faken in a tax
return. The Interpretation requires the impact of a tax position to be recognized in the financial
statements if that position is more-likely-than-not of being sustained upon examination, based on
the technical merits of the position. A tax position meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold is
then 1o be measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being
realized upon settlement. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48 was effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
Income Taxes - Continued

The Bank adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007, resulting in no cumulative
effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the date of adoption and determined that the adoption
did not have a material impact on its results of operations, financial position, and liquidity. In
accordance with FIN 48, the Bank records interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions
as part of income tax expense,

Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS™) No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive
Income," requires the disclosure of comprehensive income and its components. Changes in
unrealized loss on available-for-saie securities are the only component of accumulated other
comprehensive income for the Bank.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The Bank accounts for EPS in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic EPS
is computed by dividing income or loss available to common shareholders by the weighted-
average number of commeon shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential
dilution that could oceur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or
converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the
earnings of the entity. The diluted EPS computation does not include the anti-dijutive effect of
approximately 301,000 options for the year ended December 31, 2007,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stock-based Compensation

The Bank has a stock option plan that provides for the granting of stock options to eligible
employees and directors. Effective January 1, 2006, the Bank adopted the provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R), “Share Based Payments,” a revision to the previously issued guidance on accounting
for stock options and other forms of equity-based compensation. SFAS No. 123(R) requires
companies to recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of stock
options, or other equity instruments, based on the grant-date fair vaiue of those awards. This cost
is recognized over the period which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for
the award, generally the vesting period.

62



COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2066

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Stock-based Compensation - Continued

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Bank accounted for share-based compensation to employees under
the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Emplovees.” Under the intrinsic value method, compensation
expense is recognized only to the extent an option’s exercise price is less than the market value of
the underlying stock on the date of grant. The Bank also followed the disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.” The Barnk adopted
SFASNo. 123 (R) under the modified prospective method. Under that transition method,
compensation cost is recognized for all new awards and for the unvested portion of the options
granted prior to January 1, 2006.

Disclosure of Fair Value of Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” specifies the disclosure
of the estimated fair value of financial insiruments. The Bank’s estimated fair value amounts
have been determined using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies.

However, considerable judgment is required to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly,
the estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank could have realized in a
current market exchange. The use of differemt market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based upon relevant market and other
information about the financial instrument. The estimates do not necessarily reflect the price the
Bank might receive if it were to sell at one time ifs entire holding of a particular financial
instrument. Because no active market exists for a significant portion of the Bank’s financial
instruments, fair value estimates are based upon the following methods and assumptions, some of
which are subjective in nature. Changes in assumptions couid significantly affect the estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” effective for
the Bank January 1, 2008. This Statement defines fair value, esiablishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement
establishes a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between valuations obtained from sources
independent of the entity and those from the entity’s own observable inputs that are not
corroborated by observable market data, SFAS No. 157 expands disclosures about the use of fair
value to measure assets and liabilities in interim and annual periods subsequent to initial
recognition.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
New Accounting Pronouncements - Continued

The disclosures focus on the inputs used to measure fair value, and for recurring fair value
measurements using significant unobservable inputs, the effect of the measurements on earnings
or changes in net assets for the period. The Bank is currently assessing the impact of this
guidance on its financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No.
159 permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at
fair value. Most of the provisions of SFAS No. 159 are elective; however, the amendment to
SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” applies to all
entities with available-for-sale or trading securities, For financial instruments elected to be
accounted for at fair value, an entity will report the unrealized gains and losses in earnings.
SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after
November 15, 2007. The Bank is currently assessing the financial impact this Statement will
have on its financial conditions or results of operations.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to prior years' presentations to conform to the current year.
These reclassifications are of a normal recurring nature.

NOTE B - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the statements of financial condition according
to management’s intent. The carrying amount of securities and their approximate fair values at
December 31 were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31, 2007:
Available-for-Sale:
U.8. Gov & Agency Securities $ 502,731 $ - 3 - $ 502,731
Mortgage-backed Securities 647,610 - (14,934} 632,676
AMF-ARM Mutual Fund %,000,000 - {130,478) 7,869 522

Total Available-for-Sale $ 0,150,341 5 - § (145412) $ 9,004,929
Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Gov & Agency Securities b 18,042,039 § 6486 3 - S 18,048,525
Mortgage-backed Securities 4,468,851 - (40.339) 4428 512

Total Held-to-Maturity § 22510800 § 6486  § (40339) $ 22,471,037
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE B - INVESTMENT SECURITIES - Continued

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost (Gains Losses Value

December 31, 2006:
Available-for-Sale:
Mortgage-backed Securities $ 751,712 £ - § (24,992) 5 726,720
AMF-ARM Mutual Fund 8,000,000 (114,169 7,885,831

Total Available-for-Sale $ 8,751,712 b - $ (139,161} 3 8,612,551
Held-to-Maturity
U.8. Gov & Agency Securities 3 499,822 $ - b (447) h 499,375
Mortgage-backed Securities 5,327,158 (93.365) 5,233,793

Total Held-to-Maturity g 5,826,980 & - $ (93,812) 3 5,733,168

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had 10 investment securities where estimated fair value had
declined 1.42% from the Bank’s amortized cost. Management evaluates invesiment securities for
other-than-temporary impairment taking into consideration the extent and length of time the fair
value has been less than cost, the financial condition of the issuer and whether the Bank has the
intent and ability to retain the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value. As of December 31, 2007, no declines in value are deemed to
be other-than-temporary.

The following table shows the investment securities that have unrealized loss for less than twelve
months and twelve months or more:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or more Total
Unrealized  Estimated  Unrcalized  Estimated  Unrealized  Estimated
{Loss) Fair Value (Loss) Fair Value {Loss) Fair Value
December 31, 2007:
Available-for-Sale:
Mortgage-backed Securities $ - § - 5 {14934) § 632676 §( 14934) § 632676
AMF-ARM Mutual Fund - - 130478) 7869522 (130478) 7869522
Total Avaifable-for-Sale $ - & - $(145412) $8502,198 S 145412) § 8,302,198
Held-to-Maturity
Mortgage-backed Securities $ 3 - 8 40,33% § 4428512 §( 407339) § 4428512
Total Held-to-Maturity ) ) $ 40339 § 4428512 §( 40339) § 4428312
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2607 and 2006

NOTE B - INVESTMENT SECURITIES - Continued

Unrealized  Estimated  Unrealized  Estimated  Unrealized  Estimated
{Loss) Fair Value (Loss) Fair Value (Loss) Fair Vahe
December 31, 2006:
Available-for-Sale;
Morigage-backed Securities $ - 3 - %5 (24992) § 726,720 % (24,992) § 726,720
AMF-ARM Mutual Fund - - { 114169 TBRIB3T  { 114,169) 7885831
Total Available-for-Sale $ -5 - § 139,161y § 8,612,551 §(139,161) § §612,33]
Held-to-Maturity
U.S. Gov & Agency Securities §  (447) § 496375 - 8 (447§ 499375
Mortgage-backed Securities $ -3 - % (93,365) §5233,793 [ 93365 @ 5233,7%93
Total Held-to-Maturity $ (447) § 499375 § (93365) § 5233793 § (93,812) § 5,733,168

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2007, by
contractual maturities are shown in the following table. Expected maturities will differ from
contractual maturities, particularly with respect to mortgage-backed securities, because borrowers
may have the right to prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
Available-for-Sale;
Due in One Year or Less $502,731 $502,731
Due from One Year to Five Years 8,647,610 8,502,108
Total Available-for-Sale $9,150,341 $9,004,929
Held-to-Maturity
Due in One Year or Less $18,042,039 518,048,525
Due from One Year to Five Years 4,468,851 4428512
Total Held-to-Maturity 3 22,510,890 $ 22,477,037

See Note J - Borrowing Arrangements for further discussion of the portion of the Bank’s

investment securities portfolio pledged to third parties.

NOTE C - BALANCES AT THE FEDERAL RESERVE BANK

The Federal Reserve Board regulations, as presently in effect, require depository institutions to
maintain non-interest earning reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and
regular checking accounts) and non-personal time deposits. The reserve balance required to be
maintained at the Federal Reserve Bank was $774,000 and $400,000 at December 31, 2007 and

2006, respectively.
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COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE D - LOANS

The Bank offers loan products and banking services primarily to small to mid-sized business in
Orange County, California. Loan products offered by the Bank include a wide range of
commercial business loans, commercial real estate loans, loans under various Small Business
Administration programs, consumer loans, and construction and land development loans.
Although the Bank seeks to avoid concentrations of loans to a single industry or based upon a
single class of collateral, real estate and real estate associated businesses are among the principal
industries in the Bank’s market area. As a result, the Bank’s loan and collateral portfolios are, to
some degree, concentrated in those industries.

The Bank did not have any non-performing or impaired loans as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, An analysis of the activity in the allowance for loan losses as of December 31 follows:

2007 2006 20038
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 1225000 § 786,000 § 310,150
Additions to the Allowance Charged o Expense 304,500 435 000 475,850
Recoveries on Loans Charged Off - - -
1,529,500 1,225,000 786,000
1ess; Loans Charged Off ( 41,458) - -
Balance at End of Year S 1488042 § 1225000 § 786,000

Gain on sale of loans amounting to $16,000, 847,000 and $-0- for 2007, 2006 and 2003,
respectively, is included in Gain on Sale of Loans and Referral Fees in the accompanying
Statements of Operations.

See Note J - Borrowing Arrangements for further discussion related to pledged loans.

NOTE E - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The amount of depreciation and amortization included in operating expenses was approximately
£325,000, $269,000 and $243,000, for 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. A summary of
premises and equipment as of December 31 follows:

2007 2006

Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment s 793,717 $ 384,632
Computer Equipment 344,548 324 687
Software 253,483 207,889
I easehold Improvements 825,519 332,419
Vehicle 35,051 35,051
2,252,318 1,284,678

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization {  975,342) {650,225
§ 1,276,976 5 634,453
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE F - DEPOSITS

Remaining maturities of time certificates of deposit as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as
follows:

2007 2006
3 months or less $ 22,191,941 5 2,804,000
4-12 months 1,009,265 5,565,035
Greater than 12 months - -
Total time certicates of deposit $ 23,201,206 § 8,369,035

The Bank has three deposit relationships that represent 40.5% of total deposits.

NOTE G — INCOME TAXES

The expense {benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following:

2007 2006 2005

Current:

Federal $ {191) 5 - $ -

State 8,800 4,800 800

Total 8,609 4,800 800
Deferred: :

Federal (377,000) (363,000) 0

State (111,000) (121,000) 0

Total (488,000) - (484,000) : 0
Current Expense (Benefit): ${479,351) $(479,200) $ 800

A comparison of the federal statutory income tax rates to the Bank’s effective income tax rates at
December 31 follows:

2007 2006 2005
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Statutory Federal Tax $ 194,000 340% § 70,000 34.00%  §( 259,000) (34.00)%
State Franchise Tai, Net of

Federal Benefit 70,600 12.3% 15,000 7.10% (54,000)  (7.10)%
Change in Valuation Allowance { 871L,000)  (153.0%% {735,000y {3383)% 300,000  40350%
Stock-based Compensation' 130,000 22.8% 169,000  82.40% - -
Other items,Net { 2391 {0.4)% 1,800 1,20% 4,800 0.70 %
Actual Tax Expense $( 479301)  (84.3)% (4792000 (233.6)% § 800  0.10%

LS Al bl T, e ————— ottt s ——

"Stock-based compensation related to nondeductible incentive stock options
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NOTE G - INCOME TAXES - Continued

Deferred taxes are a result of differences between income tax accounting and generally accepted
accounting principles with respect to income and expense recognition. The following is a
summary of the components of the net deferred tax asset accounts recognized in the
accompanying statements of financial condition at December 31:

2007 2006
Deferred Tax Assets:
Organizational Expenses 5 91,000 § 189,000
Operating Loss Carryforwards 891,000 1,301,000
Allowance for Loan Losses Due to Tax Limitations 565,000 450,000
Other Items 224 000 129,000
Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,771,000 2,069,000

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Depreciation Differences 28,000) 51.000)

( (
Accrual to Cash (  276,000) { 276,000)
Other Ttems (  117,000) { 9.000)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities {  421,0600) ( 336,000)
Net Deferred Tax Assets 1,350,000 1,733,600
Valuation Allowance {  382,000) ( 1,253,000

Net deferred tax asset included in other assets $ 968,000 % 480,000

The valuation allowance was established because the Bank has not reported earnings sufficient
enough to support the complete recognition of the deferred tax assets. As noted above, the Bank
did recognize a partial benefit in 2007 and 2006 resulting in net deferred tax assets of $968,000
and $480,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Bank has net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $2,201,000 for federal income
tax and $2,000,000 for California franchise tax purposes. Federal net operating loss carry
forwards, to the extent not used, will expire in 2025. California net operating loss carry forwards,
to the extent not used, will expire in 2015. ‘

The Bank is subject to federal income tax and franchise tax of the state of California. The Bank’s
federal income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are open to
audit by the federal authorities and the California state tax returns for the years ended December
31, 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, are open to audit by state authorities.
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December 31, 2007 and 2006

NOTE G - INCOME TAXES - Continued

In accordance with FIN 48, the Bank records interest and penalties related to uncertain tax
positions as part of income tax expense. There was no penalty or interest expense recorded as of
December 31, 2007. The Bank does not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits fo

significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve months.

NOTE H - OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses as of December 31 are comprised of the following:

Director Stock-Based Compensation
Professional Fees

Data Processing

Marketing and Promotional
Customer Service

Office Expenses

Other Expenses

2007 2006 2005

$ 204,109 S 254290 § -
626,688 422,429 281,466
457206 347,282 286,844
176,582 214,751 §9,172
658 924 154,889 65,465
107,107 101,828 61,862
540,697 424070 346,681

$ 2771313 S 1010539 § 1,131,490

Customer Service expenses include Third Party Payments of $570,000, $23,000 and $-0-, for the
years 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Third Party Payments are expenses related to business

customer deposit relationships.

NOTE 1 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Bagsic and diluted earnings per share for the vears ended December 21 are computed as follows:

2007 2005
Income Shares Income Shares Income Shares
Net Income (Loss} as Reported ¥ 1,048,636 § 684341 §( 763,161
Shares Outstanding Beg. of Year 2,654,058 2,607.671 1,209,305
Impact of Weighting Shares
Issued During Year 5,151 12,110 622,662
Used in Basic EPS 1,048 636 2,659,809 634,341 2,619,781 £ 765161) 1,831,967
Dilutive Effect of Cutstanding
Stock Option 32,635 71,777 N/A
Used in Dilutive EPS § 1048436 2692444 § 684341 2,697,558 B 783,101) 1831947
BasicEPS § 0.39 § 026 3 (042
Dilative EPS  § £.39 § 025 § (042)
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NOTE J - BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS

The Bank may borrow up to $20,000,000 overnight on an unsecured basis from three of its
primary correspondent banks. As of December 31, 2007, there were no amounts outstanding
under these arrangements.

The Bank also has a borrowing facility with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) collateralized
by certain of its investments and loans. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank’s maximum
financing availability assuming adequate qualifying collateral was piedged to the FHLB totaled
$53,873,000, or 25 percent of total assets at the prior quarter end. At December 31, 2007 the
Bank had $64,390,000 in loans and $8,500,000 in investment securities pledged to the FHLB.
Based upon that collateral, the Bank’s actual borrowing capacity at the FHLB equaled
$39,300,000 at year end 2007.

The following table presents investment securities which were pledged to secure borrowings or
public deposits as of December 31, 2007, as permitted or required by law.

Amortized Cost Fair Value
To Federal Home Loan Bark to secure borrowings § 8,502,198 $ 8502198
To state and local governments to secure public borrowings 22,767,167 22,733,448
To U.S. Treasury and Federal Reserve to secure customer tax payments 246,454 246,320
Other pledged securities - -
Total pledged securities $ 31,515,819 $ 31,481,966

NOTE K - STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN

Under the terms of the 2003 Stock Option Plan, as amended, officers and key employees may be
granted both nongualified and incentive stock options. Directors and other consultants, who are
not also an officer or employee, may only be granted nonquaiified stock options. The Plan
provides for options to purchase 651,917 shares of common stock. The option price is
determined on the date the option is granted. If the Bank’s common stock is traded on the
NASDAQ National Market System, then the option price equals the common stock share closing
price on the date of grant. If the Bank’s common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market,
then the option price equals the average of the reported bid price and ask prices over the 30 days
proceeding the date the options are granted. The Bank’s common stock trades in the over-the-
counter market.

Under the ferms of the Plan, the vesting period is 3 years. The Plan provides for accelerated
vesting if there is a change of control as defined in the Plan. Stock options expire no later than
ten years from the date of the grant (five years with respect to options granted to employees
holding 10% or more of the voting stock of the Bank).
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NOTE K- STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN - Continued

The fair value of each option granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The Bank utilizes assumptions on expected life, the risk-free rate, expected
volatility, and dividend yield to determine option values. The estimated average life is derived
from the average remaining term of the options and a study of comparable institutions in the
Bank’s market area. The risk-free rate is based on treasury instruments in effect at the time of
grant whose terms are consistent with the expected life of the options. Expected volatility is
based on historical average volatility of the Bank’s peer group. The dividend yield is based on
historical experience and expected future changes. The Bank has not historically paid dividends
on its comumon stock.

The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used for stock options granted
for the years presented:

2007 2006 2005
Risk Free Interest Rate 4.71% 4.82% 4.00%
Estimated Average Life 6 years 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected Dividend Rates 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected Stock Volatility 22.00% 22.00% 27.00%
Weighted-Average Option Value § 479 § 646 § 7.05

A summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option plan as of December 31, 2007 and changes
during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractuai Intrinsic
Shares Price Life Vaiue

Outstanding at Beginning of Year 384,391 1287
Granted 113,000 § 1450
Exercised { 6,535 § 1016
Forfeited ( 10,834y § 1717
Qutstanding at End of Year 480,022 § 1341 7.6 $ 285,034
Options Exercisable 295,346 § 1230 6.8 5 502,380

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
were approximately $35,000 and $280,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was
$669,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the outstanding stock options that
will be recognized over a period of 1.4 vears.
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NOTE K - STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN - Continued

The foliowing illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share had the Bank accounted
for stock-based compensation on accordance with SFAS 123-R. For purposes of this proforma
disclosure, the value of the options is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing formula
and amortized to expense over the options’ vesting periods.

2005
Net loss, as reported b (763,101}
Less - Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value method for all qualifying awards. (236,546)
Pro forma net loss 3 {999,647)
Loss per share:
Basic:
As reported 3 (0.42)
Pro forma 5 {0.55)
Diluted:
As reported h 0.42)
Pro forma b (0.55)

NOTE L - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Bank Sponsors a 401(k) plan for the benefit of its employees. Coniributions to these plans
are determined by the Board of Directors. The Bank contributed approximately $114,000,
$94,000 and $65,000 in 2007, 2006 and 20035.

NOTEM - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administiered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory -
and possibly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Bank's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank's capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table beiow) of total and Tier 1 capital {as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets {(as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined)
to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007, that the Bank
meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
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NOTE M - REGULATORY MATTERS - Continued

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent notification from the OCC categorized the Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action (there are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's
category). To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minirnum ratios as set
forth in the table below. The following table also sets forth the Bank's actual capital amounts and
ratios (dollar amounts in thousands):

Amount of Capital Required

To Be Well-
Capitalized
For Capital Under Prompt
Adequacy Corrective
Actual Purposes Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratlo

As of December 31, 2007:
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $29.874 21.0%  $11,378 8.0% $14,223 10.0%
Tier | Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) £28,286 189%  §5,689 4.0%  $8,534 6.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $28,286 13.3%  §8,534 4.0% $10,668 5.0%

As of December 31, 2006:
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $27,898 23.8%  §9,370 8.0% §11,713 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $26,584 22.7%  $4,685 4.0%  $7,028 6.0%
Tier | Capital (fo Average Assets) $26,584 16.5%  $6,459 40%  $8,073 5.0%

The Bank is restricted as to the amount of dividends, which can be paid. Dividends declared by
national banks that exceed net income (as defined by OCC regulations) for the current year plus
retained net income for the preceding two years must be approved by the OCC. Also, the Bank
may not pay dividends that would result in capital levels being reduced below the minimum
requirements shown above.

NOTE N - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based upon relevant market and other
information about the financial instrument. The estimates do not necessarify refiect the price the
Bank might receive if it were to sell at one time its entire holding of a particular financial
instrument. Because no active market exists for a significant portion of the Bank’s financial
instruments, fair value estimates are based upon the following methods and assumptions, some of
which are subjective in nature. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Cash and Due from Banks, Federal Funds Sold and Interest Bearing Deposits in Other Banks

Fair value approximates the carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for these items.
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NOTE N - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued
Investment Securities

Fair vaiue is based upon bid prices published in financial newspapers, or bid quotations received
from securities dealers or readily available market quote systems.

Loans

Fair values are based on discounting estimated future contractual cash flows using current
offering rates offered for such loans with similar remaining maturities and credit risk.

Federal Home Loan Bank and Other Bank Stock
Fair value approximates the carrving amounts.
Accrued Intevest and Other Receivables

Fair value approximates the carrving amounts.
Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated matority such as regular passbook accounts, money
market accounts and checking accounts, is the carrying amount reported in the balance sheet. The
fair value of deposits with a stated maturity such as certificates of deposit is based on discounting
future contractual cash flows by discount rates offered for such deposits with similar remaining
maturities.

FHLB Advances

For short-term borrowings, fair value approximates carrying amounts. The fair value of iong-term
borrowings is based on their interest rate characteristics. For variable rate borrowings, fair values
approximate carrying amounts. For fixed rate borrowings, fair value is based on discounting
future contractual cash fiows by discount rates paid on such borrowings with similar remaining
maturities.

Accrued Interest and Other Liabilities
Fair value approximates the carrying amounts.

The fair value estimates presented herein are based on pertinent information available to
management as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. Although management is not aware of any
factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such amounts have not
been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial statements since that date, and
therefore, current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented
below.
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NOTE N - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued

2007 2006
Carrying Fair Cearrying Fair
Value Value Vake Value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and Due from Banks § 33 8 3302,110 5 4389917 F 4369917
Federal Funds Sold and Other Investments 43,023,128 43,023,128 46,506,000 46,506,000
Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Banks 3,959,000 3,959,000 1,973,006 1,973,006
Hvestment Securities 3515819 11,481,966 14,436,531 14,345,718
Loans, Net 119,110,560 121,348,000 97617272 §7.514,606
Federal Reserve Bank and Other Stock 1,328 430 1,328 450 1,201,950 1,201,950
Acerued Inferest and Other Recervebles §56,269 856,269 821,028 §21,028
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits § 176842818 % 176832612 % 141637467 5 141657467
Accrued Interest and Other Linbilities 678,001 678,001 436,663 436,663

NOTE O - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank would consider granting loans to certain officers and
directors and the companies with which they are associated. In the Bank’s opinion, all loans and
loan commitments to such parties would be made on substantially the same terms including
interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time of comparable transactions with other
persons. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, there were no such loans outstanding.

Also in the ordinary course of business, certain officers and directors and the companies with
which they are associated have deposits with the Bank., In the Bank’s opinion, all deposit
relationships with such parties are made on substantially the same terms including interest rates
and maturities, as those prevaiting at the time of comparable transactions with other persons. The
balance of these deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $741,000 and
$1,284,0600, respectively.

NOTE P - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

Lease Commitments :

The Bank entered into noncancelable operating leases relating to its corporate headquarters and
Main Office in Newport Beach through 2017, its Fullerton branch office through 2011 and its
former branch office in Irvine through 2068. The Irvine facility was closed and the headguarters
moved to the Newport Beach facility on Jamuary 12, 2007,
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NOTE P - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK - Continued

Lease Commitments - Continued

The Irvine space was subsequently sublet on January 17, 2007, for the same amount of rent that
the Bank is obligated to pay through the remaining lease term. Sublease rental income from the
Irvine sub-tenant was approximately $78,000 for 2007. There was no rental income in 2006.
This sub-lease income has been netted against the lease commitments in the table below. At
December 31, 2007, rent payable under non-cancelable operating lease commitments for the
Bank’s headquarters and branch offices was as follows:

2008 § 521,200
2009 539,950
2010 545,707
2011 400,995
2012 386,653
Thereafter . 1,649,925

340470

The minimum rental payments shown above are given for the existing lease obligations and are
not a forecast of future rental expense. Total rent expense was approximately $564,000, $215,000
and $204,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Substantially all of the leases provide the Bank with the option to extend the lease term one or
more times upon expiration of the existing term.

Rental expense for the Newport Beach office is recorded on a straight-line basis with a monthly
expense of approximately $31,000.

Legal Contingencies

The Bank is subject to various claims and Jawsuits which arise in the ordinary course of business.
As of December 31, 2007, the Bank does not have any claims or lawsuits and is not aware of any
potential losses.

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into financial commitments to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial commitments include commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk not recognized in the Bank’s financial statements.

The Bank’s exposure to loan loss in the event of nonperformance on commitments to extend
credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for loans reflected in
the financial statements. Loss reserves on unfunded commitments at December 31, 2007 were
$100,000.
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NOTE P - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK - Continued

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk - Continued
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Bank had the following outstanding financial
commitments whose contractual amount represents credit risk:

2007 2006
Commitments to Extend Credit $24,323,206 $28,659,688

Letters of Credit 655,000 283265
: $24,978,206 $28,952,953

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates cach client’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case
basis. The type and amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Bank is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the customer, the type of loan and the source of repayment.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

To our Shareholders:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
included in this annual report. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and reflect
management’s judgments and estimates concerning effects of events and transactions that are
accounted for or disclosed.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintzining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. The Bank’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that pertain to the Bank’s ability to record, process, summarize and report reliable
financial data. Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of
any intemal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of internal control. Accordingly, even effective intemal control over
financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting may vary over time,
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In order to ensure that the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting is effective,
management regularly assesses such controls and did so most recently for its financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over
financial reporting described in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment,
management has concluded that the intemmal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2007.

The Board of Directors, acting through its Audit Committee, is responsible for the oversight of
the Bank’s accounting policies, financial reporting and internal control. The Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors is comprised entirely of outside directors who are independent of
management. The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment and compensation of the .
independent auditor and approves decisions regarding the appointment or removal of the Bank’s
Internal Auditor. It meets periodically with management, the independent auditors and the
internal auditors to ensure that they are carrying out their responsibilities. The Audit Committee
is alse responsible for performing an oversight role by reviewing and monitoring the financial,
accounting and auditing procedures of the Bank in addition to reviewing the Bank’s financial
reports. The independent auditors and the internal anditor have full and unlimited access to the
Audit Committee, with or without management, to discuss the adequacy of internal control over
financial reporting, and any other matter which they believe should be brought to the attention of
the Audit Committee.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART IIT

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from
information contained in the Bank’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Anmual Meeting of
Shareholders which will be filed with the OCC on or before April 29, 2008.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from
information contained in the Bank’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders which will be filed with the OCC on or before April 29, 2008.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Hem 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from
information contained in the Bank’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders which will be filed with the OCC on or before April 29, 2008.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from
information contained in the Bank’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Mecting of
Shareholders which will be filed with the OCC on or before April 29, 2008.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Item: 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from

information contained in the Bank’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders which will be filed with the OCC on or before April 29, 2008.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements.

The following Financial Statements are included as part of this report on pages 52
through 78, in Part II, Item 8:

Statements of Financial Condition at December 31, 2007 and 2006

Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006

Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Notes to Financial Statements

(2)(2) Financial Statement Schedules. Not applicable.

(2)(3) Exhibits.

Exhibit Number Document Description

3.1 Bytaws. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 filed by
the Bank on its Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

32 Articles of Association. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2/A on
June 5,2003.

3.3 Organization Certificate. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2/A on
June 5, 2003.

4.1 Specimen Certificate of Common Stock. Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed by the Bank on its Form
SB-2 on May 7, 2003,

10.1 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

10.2 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed by the
Bank on its Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

103 Agreement with Carpenter & Company for Initial
Offering. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2 on May
7, 2003.
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104

10.5

10.6

107

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

23.1

2003 Stock Option Plan, as amended. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed by the Bank on its Form
SB-2/A on June 3, 2003.

Consulting Agreements. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2/A on
June 5, 2003,

Lease (Fullerton Office). Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 filed by the Bank on its Form 10-QSB on
November 12, 2003,

Sublease (former Irvine Loan Production Office).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed by the
Bank on its Form 10-QSB on November 12, 2003,

Code of Ethics for the Senior Financial Officers,
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed by the
Bank on its Form 10-KSB on March 29, 2004,

Lease (former Irvine Branch Office). Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed by the Bank on its Form
10-QSB on November 8, 2004,

Employment Agreements of the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Credit Officer and former Chief Financial Officer.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed by the
Bank on its Form 10-K.5B on March 30, 2005,

Lease (Newport Beach headquarters office).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed by the
Bank on its Form 10-QSB on August 4, 2006.

Sublease (Irvine Branch Office).

Employment Agreements of Mark E. Simmons,
President and Chief Executive Officer, and Steven L.
Holistein, Executive Vice President and Chief Credit
Officer, dated April 1, 2007, Incorporated by reference
to Form 8-K dated April 1, 2007.

Employment Agreement of Larry v. Sorensen, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, dated
October 22, 2007. Incorporated by reference to Form 8-
K dated October 22, 2007,

Equity-Based Deferred Compensation Plan for
Directors, effective September 1, 2007.

Consent of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP
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311 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant
to Rule 13a-14(a)

31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant
to Rule 13a-14(a)

32 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002

An Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 and Notice of Annual
Meeting and Proxy Statement for the Bank’s 2008 Annual Meeting will be mailed to security
holders subsequent to the date of filing this report. Copies of said materials will be furnished to
the OCC.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COMMERCE NATIONALBANK
By:

Date: March 28, 2008 /s/ Mark E. Simmons
Mark E. Simmons
President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 28, 2008 /s/ Larry V., Sorensen
Larry V. Sorensen
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
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Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed by the following persons on behalf of the Bank and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Bernard E. Schneider Chairman of the Board March 28, 2008

Bernard E. Schneider

/s/ Allen L. Basso Director March 28, 2008

Allen L. Basso

/s/ Carolyn D. Beaver Director March 28, 2008

Carolyn D. Beaver

/s/ Burnie H. Duniap Director March 28, 2008

Burnie H. Duniap

/s/ Steven L. Holistein Director March 28, 2008

Steven L. Hollstein

/s/ William H. McAulay Director March 28, 2008

William H. McAulay

/s/ Robert H, Smith Director March 28, 2008

Robert H. Smith

/s/ Donald P. Tormey Director March 28, 2008

Donald P. Tormey
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit Number Document Deseription Page Number

3.1 Bylaws. Incorporated by reference to *

Exhibit 3.2 filed by the Bank on its
Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

32 Articles of Association. Incorporated *
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed by the Bank
on its Form SB-2/A on June 5,2003,

3.3 Organization Certificate. Incorporated by *
reference to Exhibit 3.3 filed by the Bank
on its Form SB-2/A on June 5, 2003,

4.1 Specimen Certificate of Comumon Stock. *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed
by the Bank on its Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

10.1 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement. *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003,

10.2 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement. *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 filed
by the Bank on its Form SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

10.3 : ~ Agreement with Carpenter & Company for *
Initial Offering. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 filed by the Bank on its Form
SB-2 on May 7, 2003.

104 2003 Stock Option Plan, as amended. *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
filed bv the Bank on its Form SB-2/A on June 5, 2003,

10.5 Consulting Agreements. Incorporated by reference *
to Exhibit 10.7 filed by the Bank on its Form SB-2/A
on June 3, 2003.

10.6 Lease (Fulierton Office). Incorporated by reference *
to Exhibit 10.1 filed by the Bank on its Form 10-QSB
on November 12, 2003,

10.7 Sublease (former Irvine Loan Production Office). *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed by
the Bank on its Form 10-QSB on November 12, 2003.

108 Code of Ethics for the Senior Financial Officers. *
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10.9

16.10

10.11

10.12

10,13

10.14

10.15

231

31.1

31.2

32

*Previously filed

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
filed by the Bank on its Form 10-KSB on
March 29, 2004,

Lease (former Irvine Branch Office). *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4

filed by the Bank on its Form 10-QSB on

November 8, 2004.

Employment Agreements of the Chief *
Execative Officer, Chief Credit Officer and

former Chief Financial Officer. Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed by the Bank

on its Form 10-KSB on March 30, 2005,

Lease (Newport Beach headquarters office). *
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

filed by the Bank on its Form 10-QSB on

August 4, 2006.

Sublease (Irvine Branch Office).

Employment Agreements of Mark E. Simmons, *
President and Chief Executive Officer, and

Steven L. Hollstein, Executive Vice President and

Chief Credit Officer, dated April 1, 2007. Incorporated by
reference to Form 8-K dated April 1, 2007.

Empioyment Agreement of Larry v. Sorensen,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, dated October 22, 2007. Incorporated

by reference to Form 8-K dated October 22, 2007.

Equity-Based Deferred Compensation Plan
for Directors, effective September 1, 2007.

Consent of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer
pursuant 10 Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(z)

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002

86



Commerce National Bank
Equity-Based Director Deferred Compensation Plan

Executive Summary

Participation All Board members may elect to defer their
compensation for future periods.

Tax Status of the Plan The plan is a nonqualified deferred compensation
pian. Participants who make proper deferral
elections are not taxed on the deferred amounts
(and earnings on deferrals) until they are paid out at
termination of service. The plan is structured
to comply with the requirements of Section 4094 of
the tax code, which imposes significant limitations
on deferred compensation arrangements. In
addition, to ensure favorable tax treatment, the pian
is structured as an unfunded arrangement, i.e., the
Bank has entered into an agreement to make a
future payment to the participant. Even if the Bank
sets aside shares as deferrals are made o meet its
future obligations, these shares do not become the
property of the participant until they receive a
distibution.  Prior to payment, the participant
remains an unsecured creditor of the Bank.

Timing of Elections : Initial year covering compensation to be earned
through December 31, 2007 -- within 30 days of
Plan effective date. |

2008 and subsequént years — no later than
December 31% of the preceding year.

Amount of Deferral Up to 100% of director compens.ation.

Status of Elections Elections are irrevocable once made for the year to
which the election relates. The election will be
treated as a continuing election unless 2 new
election may be made for subsequent plan year,



Deferral Accounts

Distributions

Timing

Form

A bookkeeping account will be established for each
participating director, Account statements will be
provided after the close of each plan year.

All deferrals will be credited in the form of
Commerce National Bank common stock bassd on
the value of the stock on the crediting date. These
credits are referred to as “phantom shares” in the
plan. If the Bank pays a dividend, the phantom
shares will also be credited with the dividend. All
distributions will made solely in the form of shares
of common stock.

Distributions are generally made when a

director leaves the Board, i.e., on account of a
voluntary resignation, retirement, death, disability
or failure to be renominated. These events are
referred to as “separation of service” events,

There are several additiona)] “time of distribution”
elections that are not tied to a separation of service.
These include a (i) distribution on account of

death , disability or a change in control and (i) a
distribution on a specified future date that is at least
two years after the end of the vear in which the

 deferrals were made,

A director may elect to receive distributions in the
form of (i} 2 lump sum or (if) up to 10 annual
installments. Interest is credited to the unpaid
account balance if an installment election is made.
The distribution election must be made at the Hme
the deferral ¢lection is made. Separate elections
may be made for distributions relating to events tha
do not constitute a separation of service.

A prior distribution election may be changed
subject to the following conditions, which are
generally adverse to the participant;

®) the new election cannot take effact
for one vear, and



Beneficiary Designations

Submission of Forms

(i)  the new distribution date must be at
least five years later than the original
distribution date.

By way of illustration, assume that a director makes
an initial election on September 1, 2007 to receive a

~ distribution in instaliment payments over 10 years

at termination of service. On December 1, 2009,
the director decides to change his or her election to
receive a lump sum distribution at termination. The
new election would not be in effect until December
2, 2010 and the new distribution date would have to
be no earlier than five vears afier the director’s
termination date.

Each director may provide the Bank with a
beneficiary designation for their account. If no
designation is made, the director’s spouse is
presumed to be the beneficiary or, if the director
does not have a spouse, the director’s estate is

treated as the beneficiary.

Directors will be provided with appropriate forms to
make deferral and distribution elections as well as a
beneficiary designation.



COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK |
EQUITY-BASED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR DIRECTORS

ARTICLE !
PURPOSE

The purposes of this Equity-Based Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (the “Plan™) are to
(i) provide current tax plarming opportunities as wel] as supplemental funds for retirement or death for
eligible Directors of the Bank, and (ii) permit Directors to acquire an equity interest in the Bank through a
plan of nongualified deferred compensation. The Plan shal] be effective September 1, 2007, The Plan is
not intended to be a tax-qualified retirement plan under Code Section 401(a). The Plen is intended to
comply with Code Section 4094 and any regulatory or other guidance issued under such Section. Any
terms of the Plan that conflict with Code Section 409A shall be null and void as of the effective date of
the Plan.

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of the Plan, the following terms may have the meanings indicated, unless the
context ciearly indicates otherwise: '

Account means the Account as maintained by the Bank in accordance with Article TV with
respect to any deferral of Compensation pursuant to the Plan. A Director's Account shall be utilized
solely ag a device for the determination and measurement of the amounts to be paid to the Director
pursuant to the Plan. A Director’s Account shall not constifitte or be treated as 2 trust fund of any kind.

Beneficiary means the person or persons (and their heirs) designated as Beneficiary by the
Director (Exhibit A hereto) to whom the deceased Director’s benefits are payable. If no Beneficiary is so
designated, then the Director’s spouse, if living, will be deemed the Beneficiary. If the Director’s spouse
is not living, then the children of the Director will be deemed the Beneficiaries and will take on a per
stirpes basis. If there are no living children, then the estate of the Director will be deemed the Beneficiary,

Board means the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Change in Control shall mean (i) a change in the ownership of the Bank, (ii) a change in the
effective control of the Bank, or (iil) 2 change in the ownership of 2 substantial portion of the assets of the
Bank, subject to the specific requirements of Section 409A and any reguiatory or other guidance issued
under such Section.

Code means the Interna] Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Committee means the Committee appointed to administer the Plan pursuant to Article V1,

Bank means Commerce National Bank, or any successor to the business thereof, and any
affiliated or subsidiary corporations designated by the Board.

Compensafion means all cash compensztion to which the Director becomes entitled as a
member of the Board during the Deferral Period.

Deferral Agreement means the agreement filed by a Director which acknowledges assent to



the terms of the Plan and in which the Director elects to defer the receipt of Compensation during a
Deferral Period. The Deferral Agreement must be filed with the Committes prior to the beginning of the
Deferral Period. A new Deferral Agreement or Notice of Adjustment of Deferral may be submitted by the
Director for each Deferral Commitment. If the Director fails to submit a new Deferral Agreement or
Notice of Adjustment of Deferral prior to the beginning of a Deferral Period, deferrals for such period
. shall be made in accordance with the last submitted Deferral Agreement,

Deferral Commitment means an election 10 defer Compensation made by a Director pursuant
to Article ITT and for which a separate Deferral Agreement has been submitted by the Director to the
Committee. Bach Deferral Commitment during the Deferral Period shall be for a 12-month period
commeneing January 1 and ending December 31, provided, however that the first Deferral Commitment
will be for the number of full months Temaining in the Plan Year after the Deferral Commitment is
initially signed (unless the Deferral Commitment is signed in December of the year before initizl
participation) and the final Deferral Commitment will be for the lesser of (i} 12 months or (i1) the number
of full months that the Director is in the service of the Bank in the year of such Director’s termination of
service. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Deferral Commitments will continue
following termination of service.

Deferral Period means the period of months over which a Director has elected to defer a
portion of his Compensation.

Director means 2 director who has been approved by the Bank to participate in the Plan and who
has elected to become a party to the Plan by execution of a Deferral Agreement in a form provided by the
Bank.

Disability
A Director shall be considered “disabled” if the Director:
(2) is. unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of eny medically

determinzble physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death, or last for 2
continuous peried of not less than 12 months;

(}) - by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be
expected 10 result in death, or last for 2 continuous period of not less than 12 months, is receiving income

(c) is determined to be totally disabled by the Social Security Administration,

Notice of Adjustment of Deferra| means the notice which the Director may submit for
Deferral Periods following the initial Deferral Period. The Notice of Adjustment of Deferral, attached zs
Exhibit C hereto, shall set forth the Director’s elections with respect to deferrals for subsequent Deferra]
Periods.

Payout Period means the period over which certain benefits payable hereunder ghal]l be
distributed as designated in the Director’s Deferral Agreement. '

Phantom Shares means the measurement of a Director's Account hereunder denominated in
hypothetical shares of Bank common stock. On any Valuation Date, the Phantom Shares will have a value
equal to the fair market value of Bank common stock on such date.

(R



Plan Year means the period from January 1 to December 31.

Separation from Service means the Director’s death, retirement or other termination of
employment or service with the Bank. No Separation from Service shall be deemed to occur due to
military leave, sick leave or other bona fide lezve of absence if the period of such leave does not exceed
six months or, if longer, so long as the Director’s right to reemployment is provided by law or contract, If
the leave exceeds six months and the Director’s right to continued service is not provided by law or by
contract, then the Director shall be have 2 Separation from Service on the first date immediately following
such six-month period. For all purposes hereunder, Separation from Service shall have the meaning
required by Code Section 40%A.

Trustee means the Trustee, if any, of any grantor trust established by the Bank to accumulate
assets for the purpose of funding the benefits promised under the Plan.

Unforeseeable Emergency means a severe financial hardship to the Director resulting from
(1) an illness or accident of the Director, the Director’s spouse, or the Director’s dependent (as defined in
Code Section 152(a)); (ii) loss of the Director's property due to casualty; or (iii} other similar
extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the Director’s control.
The term “Unforesezabie Emergency” shall be construed consistent with Code Section 409A and
Proposed or Final Treasury Regulations and other guidance issued thereunder.

Valuation Date means the lest day of each Plan Year and such other dates as determined from
time to time by the Committee. :

ARTICLE I
PARTICIPATION AND DEFERRAL COMMITMENTS

3.1 Eligibility and Participation.

{a) Eligibility. El‘igibﬂity' to participate in the Plan shall be limited to Directors,

() Participation. A Director may elect fo participate in the Plan with respect to any Deferral
Period by submitting, as fo the initial Deferral Period, a Deferral Agreement or, as to subsequent Deferral
Periods, & Notice of Adjustment of Deferral. Said Deferral Agreement or Notice of Adjustment of
Deferral shall be submitted to the Committee by December 15 of the calendar year immediately preceding
the Deferral Period. If 2 previously eligible Director fails to submit 2 Notice of Adjustment of Deferral for
a Deferral Period, the Committee shall treat the previously submitted Deferral Agreement or Notice of
Adjustment of Deferral as still in effect. The initial Deferral Agreement must be submitted to the
Committee no later than thirty (30) days after the Director first becomes eligible fo participate, and such
Deferral Agreement shall be effective only with regard to Compensation eamed or payabdle following the
submission of the Deferral Agreement to the Commitiee.

32  Form of Deferra. Except as provided in Section 3.1(b) above, a Director may elect in
the Deferral Agreement to defer up to 100% of his Compensation for the Deferral Period following the
submission of the Director's Deferral Agreement or Notice of Adjustment of Deferral.

3.3 Irrevocability of Deferral Commitment. A Deferral Commitment made with réspect
to & Deferral Period shall be irrevocable for the entire Plan Year, except in the event of 2 distribution due
to an Unforeseeable Emergency occurring during the Deferral Period.




ARTICLE IV
DEFERRED COMPENSATION ACCOUNTS; INVESTMENT IN BANK STOCK

4.1 Accounts. For recordkeeping purposes only, an Account shall be maintained for each
Director. Separate subaccounts shall be maintained to the extent necessary to properly reflect the
Director’s separate year Deferral Commitments.

4.2 Elective Deferred Compensation; investment in Bank Stock. The amount of
Compensation that a Director elects to defer shall be withheid from each payment of Compensation as the
non-deferred portion of the Compensation becomes or would have become payabie. Compensation
deferred by Directors will immediately be credited towards the acquisition of Phantom Shares for the
Director’s Account. Phantom Shares will be deemed to be acquired at the prevailing market rate of the
Bank common stock in the open market. Each period during which Phantom Shares are credited o the
Directors Accounts, Phantom Shares will be credited to each Director’s Account in the form of
bookkeeping entry based on the Director’s proportionate share of the total amount of deferred
Compensation applied towards the acquisition of such Phantom Shares. A Director’s Account will be
maintained in Phantom Shares for the duration of such Director's participation in the Plan. To the extent
that dividends are issued on the Bank common stock, dividends will be credited to the Phantom shares in
the same proportion as the actual dividends are credited on the Bank common stock. Cash dividends
credited on the Phantom Shares, will be deemed to be applied immediately to the purchase of additional
Phantom Shares at the prevailing market rates, which Phantom Shares will be credited to Directors’
Accounts proportionately based on cash dividends appiied from such Director’s Account. _

4.3 Determination of Accounts. During a Director’s period of service, each Director’s
Account 25 of each Valuation Date will consist of the balance of Phantom Shares held in the Director’s
Account as of the immediately preceding Valuation Date, increased by Compensation deferred pursuant
to a Deferral Commitment and dividends, if any, each of which have been denominated in Phantom
Shares and credited to the Director’s Account, and decreased by distributions made since the prior
Valuation Date,

44  Vesting of Accounts. A Director shall be one umdred percent (100%) vested at all
times in the Compensation deferred under the Plan and earnings thereon. ‘ :

4.5 Statement of Accounts. The Committee shall provide to each Director, within sixty
(60) days following the end of the Plan Year, a statement setting forth the balance to the credit of the
Account maintained for the Director as of the immediately preceding Valuation Date.

ARTICLE YV
PLAN BENEFITS

51 Benefit Upon Separation from Service. Upon 2 Director’s Separation from Service
for reasons other than death or Disability, the Director shall be entitled to a distribution of his Account
payable in the manner set forth in the Director’s Deferral Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the event a Director is a Specified Employee and the following is required by Code Section 40%9A, no
distributien shall be made to such Director prior to the first day of the seventh month following such
Separation from Service,

_ 52 Benefit Payment Prior to Separation from Service. A Director may elect in his
Deferral Agreement to have payments from his Account commence prior to Separation from Service at a




specified date set forth in the Deferral Agreement. If the Director elects to have benefits paid at a
specified date or dates, such benefits shall be paid in a lump sum or over a period of years not to exceed
ten (10) years, as designated in the Director’s Deferral Agreement.

5.3  Death Benefit. Upon the death of a Director, the Bank shall pay to the Director’s
Beneficiary an amount determined as follows:

(a) If the Director dies after termination of service with the Bank, and after commencement
of disiributions, the remaining unpaid balance of the Director’s Account shall be paid in the same form
that payments were being made prior to the Director’s death. If the Director dies after termination of
service but before any distributions begin, his Beneficiary shall receive a Jump sum payment of the
Drirector’s vested Account balance measured as of the tnost recent Valuation Date. Such payment to the
Beneficiary shall completely discharge the Bank's obligations under the Plan.

(®) If the Director dies prior to termination of service with the Bank, his Account shall be
paid over the Payout Period in the manner selected by the Director in his Deferral Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Director may elect an alternative distribution form in the event of such
Director’s death while in the service of the Bank. Such election may be made in the Director’s timely
filed Deferral Agreement or in a properly completed modification of Deferral Agreement that complies
with the requirements of Section 5.9 hereof.

5.4 Disability Benefit. (a) In the event of the Director's Disability prior to Separation from
Service, his Account shall be paid in accordance with the Director’s Deferral Agreement regarding
distributions on account of Separation from Serviee or pursuant o the fixed distribution scheduie
previously elected. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Director may elect an alternative distribution form in
the event of such Director’s Disability while in the service of the Bank. Such election may be made in the
Drrector’s timely filed Deferral Agreement or in a properly completed modification of Deferral
Agreement that complies with the requirements of Section 5.9 hereof.

5.5  Distribution upon a Change in Control. In the event of & Change in Contro! of the
Bark, 2 Director’s Account may be paid to the Director, irrespective of whether the Director incurs a
Separation from Service, if the Director has elected 2 distribution upon a Change in Control in the
Director’s Deferral Agreement. '

5.6  Distribution in Bank Common Stock. Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan to
the contrary, for purposes of making any distributions under this Article V, including distributions under
Section 5.7 hereof, a Director’s Account will be settled only by delivery of shares of Bank common stock
to the Director on the distribution date. No cash or other assets will be distributed to 2 Director or his
Beneficiary under the Plan.

5.7 Hardship Distributions. Upon & finding that a Director has suffered an Unforeseeable
Emergency, the Committee may make distributions from the Director’s Account prior to the time
specified for payment of benefits under the Plan. The amount of such distribution shall be limited to the
amount necessary to satisfy the emergeney, plus amounts necessary 1o pay taxes reasonably anticipated as
a result of the distribution. The amounts necessary to satisfy the emergency will be determined afier
taking into account the extent to which the hardship is, or can be, relieved through reimbursement or
compensation by insurance or otherwise, or by liquidation of the Director’s assets, to the extent that the
asset liquidation would not itself cause 2 severe financial hardship. In the event of a hardship distribution,
a Director’s Deferral Commitment for the Plan Year shall cease and no further deferrals shall be
permitted or required of the Director for such Plan Year.
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5.8  Commencement of Pavments: Automatic Distributions. Except as otherwise
may be required pursuant to Code Section 405A, payments under the Plan shall commence within thirty
(30} days of the event which triggers distribution (or if jater, within thirty (30) days of when the Bank
becomes aware or should reasonably have become aware of the event that tmiggers distribution).
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the Director’s Account (when added together with all
of his benefits under all nonqualified deferred compensation plans maintained by the Bank) is $10,000 or
less at the time of the distribution event, payment shall be made in a single distribution of Bank ¢ommon
stock attributable to such Director’s Account, even if the Director’'s Deferral Agreement specifies a
different form of payment, and such payment shall be made before the later of (i) December 31 of the

year in which the Director terminates service with the Bank or (i) the 15&1 day of the third month
following the Director’s termination of service with the Bank.

5.9 Modification of Deferral Election. In the event a Director desires to modify the time
or form (e.g., from instaliments to lump sum or vice versa) of distribution of his Account (or any sub-
account), the Director may do so by filing a subsequent Deferral Agreement, provided that:

{a) the subsequent election shall not be effective for at least 12 months afier the date on
which the subsequent election is made;

(b) except for payments upon the Director’s death, Disability or upon an Unforeseesble
Emergency, the first of 2 stream .of payments for which the subsequent election is made shall be deferred
for a period of not less than five (5) years from the date on which such payment would otherwise have
been made;

{c) for payments scheduled to be made on a specified date or to commence under 2 fixed
schedule, the subsequent election must be made at least 12 months before the date of the first scheduled

payment.

ARTICLE VI
- ADMINISTRATION

6.1 Committee: Duties. The Plan shall be administered oy the Committee, which shall be
appointed by the Board. The Committee shall have the authority to make, amend, interpret, and enforce
all appropriate rules and regulations for the administration of the Plan and decide or resolve any and all
questions, including interpretations of the Plan, as may arise in connection with the Plan, A majority vote
of the Committee members shall control any decision.

6.2 Agents. The Committee may, fom time to time, employ other agents and delegate to
them such administrative duties as it sees fit, and may from time to time consult with counsel who may be
counsel 10 the Bank.

€.3  Binding Effect of Decisions. The decision or action of the Committee in: respect to
any question arising out of or in connection with the administration, interpretation and application of the
Plan and the rules of regulations promulgated hereunder shall be final, conclusive znd binding upon al}
persons having eny interest in the Plan.

6.4 indemnity of Committee, The Bank shall indemnify and hold harmiless the members
of the Committee against any angd ajl claimg, loss, damage, expense or liability arising from any action or
failure to act with respect to the Plan, except in the case of gross negligence or willful misconduct.




ARTICLE VI
CLAIMS PROCEDURE

7.1 Claim. Any person claiming a benefit, requesting an Interpretation or ruling under the
Pian, or requesting information under the Plan shall present the request in writing fo the Commitize,
which shall respond in writing within thirty (30) days.

7.2 Denial of Claim. If the claim or request is denied, the written notice of denial shall

state:

(a) The reasons for denial, with specific reference to the Plan provisions on which the denial
is based,

(b) A description of any additiona] material or information required and an explanation of
why it is necessary. :

(c) Amn explanation of the Plan’s claim review procedure,

7.3 Review of Claim. Any person whose claim or request is denied or who has not received
a response within thirty (30) days may request review by notice given in writing to the Committee. The
claim or request shall be reviewed by the Committee who may, but shall not be required to, grant the
* clzimant a hearing. On review, the claimant may have representation, examine pertinent documents, and
submit issues and comments in writing,

7.4 Final Decision. The decision or review shall normally be made within sixty (60) days.
If an extension of time is required for a hearing or other special circumstances, the claimant shall be
notified and the time limit shall be one hmdred twenty (120) days. The decision shall be in writing and
shall state the reasons and the relevant Plan provisions.

, 7.5  Arbitration. If a claimant continues to dispute the benefit denial based upan completed

performance of the Plan and the Deferral Agreement or the meaning and effect of ‘the terms and
conditions thereof, then the claimant may submit the dispute o mediation, administered by the American
Arbitration Association {“AAA™) (or a mediator selected by the parties) in accordance with the AANs
Commercial Mediation Rules. If mediation is not successful in resolving the dispute, it shall be settled by
arbitration administered by the AAA under its Commercial Arbitration Rules, and judgment on the award
rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof,

ARTICLE Vil
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF PLAN

81 Amendment. The Board may at any time amend the Plan in whole or in part, providad,
however, that no amendment shall be effective to decrease or restrict the amount accrued ic the date of
amendment in any Account maintained under the Plan,

8.2  Bank’s Right to Terminate. The Board may at any time partially or completely
terminate the Plan if, in its Judgment, the tax, accounting, or other effects of the confinuance of the Plan,
or potential payments thereunder, would not be in the best interests of the Bank.

(&) Partial Termination. The Board may partizlly terminate the Plan by instructing the
Committee not to accept any additional Deferral Commitments. In the event of such a partial termination,
the Plan shall continue to operate and be effective with regard to Deferra] Commitments entered into prior




to the effective date of such partia] termination.

(b) Complete Termination. The Board may completely terminate the Plan by instructing the
Committee not to accept any additional Deferral Commitment, and by terminating all ongoing Deferral
Commitments. Subject to the requirements of Code Section 409A, in the event of complete termination,
the Plan shall cease to operate and the Bank shall pay out to each Director his Account as if that Director
had terminated service as of the effective date of the complete termination. Such complete termination of
the Plan shall occur only under the following circumstances and conditions. '

{1) The Board may terminate the Plan within 12 months of = corporate dissolution
taxed under Code section 331, or with approval of a bankruptcy court pursuant to 11 U.S.C.
§503(b)(1)(A), provided that the amounts deferred under the Plan are included in each Director's
gross income in the latest of (i) the calendar year in which the Plan terminates; (i) the calendar
year in which the amount is no Jonger subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture; or (1if) the first
calendar year in which the payment is administratively practicable.

(2) The Board mey terminate the Plan within the 30 days preceding a Change in
Control (but not following a Change in Control), provided that the Plan shall only be treated zs
termunated if all substantially similar arrangements sponsored by the Bank are terminated so that
the Directors and all participants under substantially similar arrangements are required to receive
all amounts of compensation deferred under the terminated arrangements within 12 rmonths of the
date of the termination of the arrangements.

3 The Board may terminate the Plan provided that (i) all arrangements sponsored
by the Bank that would be aggregated with this Plan under Proposed Treasury Regulations
section 1.40$A-1(e) if any Director covered by this Plan was also covered by any of those other
arrangements are also terminated; (i) no payments other than payments that would be payzble
under the terms of the arrangement if the termination had not occurred are made within 12
months of the termination of the arrangement; (iii) all payments are made within 24 months of the
termination of the arrangements; and (iv) the Bank does not adopt 2 new arrangement that would
be aggregated with any terminated arrangement under Proposed Treasury Regulations section
1.409A-1{(c) if the same Director participated in both arrangements, at any time within five years
following the date of termination of the arrangement,

{4) The Board may terminate the Plan pursuant to such other terms and conditions as
the Internal Revenue Service may permit from time to time.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 Unfunded Plan. The Plan is intended 1o be an unfunded plan maintained primarily to
provide deferred compensation benefits for a select group of management or highly compensated
employees. The Plan is not intended to create an mvestment contract, but to provide tax planning
opportunities and retirement benefits to eligible individuals who have elected to participate in the Plan,
Eligible individuals are select members of the Board who, by virtue of their position with the Bank, are
uniguely informed as to the Bank's operations and have the ability to materially affect the Bank's
profitability and operations.

9.2 Unsecured General Creditor. Directors and their Beneficiaries, heirs, successors and
assigns shall have no legal or equitabie rights, interest or claims in any property or assets of the Bank, nor
shall they be Beneficiaries of, or have any rights, claims or interests in any life insurance policies, annuity



contracts or the proceeds therefrom owned or which may be acquired by the Bank. Such policies or other
assets of the Bank shall not be held under any trust for the benefit of Directors, their Beneficiaries, heirs,
SUCCESSOrS or assigns, or held in any way as collatera) security for the fulfilling of the obligations of the -
Bank under the Plan. Any and all of the Bank’s assets and policies shall be, and remain, the general,
unpledged, unrestricted assets of the Bank. The Bank's obligation under the Plan shall be that of zn
unfunded and unsecured promise of the Bank to pay money in the future,

8.3  Trust Fund. The Bank shall be responsibie for the payment of all benefits provided
uncer the Plan. Notwithstanding the above, the Bank may establish one or more rabbi trusts, with such
trustees a5 the Board may approve, for the purpose of providing for the payment of such benefits. Any
rabbi trust that may be established hereunder will conform to the requirements of Revenue Procedure §2- .
64 and EITF 97-14, “Plan A" (i.e the plan does not permit diversification and must be settled by the
delivery of 2 fixed number of shares of employer stock). Such trust or trusts may be irrevocable, but the
assets thereof shall be subject to the claims of the Bank's creditors, To the extent any benefits provided
under the Plan are actvally paid from any such trust, the Bank shall have no further obligation with
respect thereto, but to the extent not so paid, such benefits shall remain the obligation of, and shall be paid
by, the Bank. For the duration of a Director’s participation in the Plan, any rabbi trust will hold only
shares of Bank common stock that are purchased in connection with a Director’s Deferral Commitment or
that are acquired by reinvesting dividends paid on Bank common stock. Except for dividends issued on
shares of Bank common stock prior to their reinvestment, no cash or other assets will be permitted to be
held in the rabbi trust.

9.4  Payment to Director, Legal Representative or Beneficiary. Any payment to any
Director or the legal representative, Beneficiary, or to any guardian or committee appointed for such
Director or Beneficiary in accordance with the provisions hereof, shall, to the extent thereof, be in full
satisfaction of all claimg hereunder against the Bank, which may require the Director, legal representative,
Beneficiary, guardian or committee, as & condition precedent to such payment, to execute a receipt and
release thereof in such form as shall be determined by the Bank. '

8.5  Nonassignability. Neither a Director nor any other person shall have any right to
commute, sell, assign, transfer, hypothecate or convey in advance of actual receipt the amounts, if any,
payable hereunder, or any part thereof, which are, and all rights to which are, expressly declared 1o be
unassignable and nontransferable. No part of the amounts payable shall, prior to actual payment, be
subject to seizure or sequestration for the payment of any debts, judgments, alimony or separate
maintenance owed by a Director or any other person, nor be transferable by operation of law in the event
of a Director’s or any other person’s bankruptey or insolvency.

9.6  Terms. Whenever any words are used herein in the masculine, they shall be construed s
though they were used in the feminine in all cases where they would so apply; and whenever any words
are used herein in the singular or in the piural, they shall be construed as though they were used in the
plural or the singular, as the case may be, in all cases where they would so apply.

8.7  Captions. The captions of the articles, sections and paragraphs of the Plan are for
convernience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of its provisions.

8.8 Governing Law. The provisions of the Plan shall be construed and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of California.

9.8  Validity. In case any provision of the Plan shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason,
said illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts hereof, but the Plan shall be construed and
enforced as if such illegal and invalid provision had never been inserted herein.



9.10 Notice. Any notice or filing required or permitted to be given to the Committee under
the Plar shall be sufficient if in writing and hand delivered, or sent by registered or certified mail, to any
member of the Committee, the Plan Administrator, or the Secretary of the Bank. Such notice shall be
deemed given as of the date of delivery or, if delivery is made by mail, as of the date shown on the
postmark on the receipt for registration or certification.

9.11 Successors. The provisions of the Plan shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Bank
and ifs successors and assigns. The term “successors” as used herein shall include any corporate or other
business entity which shall, whether by merger, consolidation, purchase or otherwise acguire all or
substantially all of the business and assets of the Bank, and successors of any such corporation or other
business entity.

9.12 Compliance with Section 409A of the Code. The Plan is intended fo be z non-
qualified deferred compensation plan deseribed in Section 405A of the Code. The Plan shall be operated,
administered and construed to give effect to such intent. To the extent that a provision of the Plan fails to
comply with Code Section 409A and a construction consistent with Code Section 4094 is not possible,
such provision shail be void ab initic. In addition, the Plan shall be subject to amendment, with or without
advance notice to interested parties, and on a prospective or retroactive basis, including but not limited to
amendment in a manner that adversely affects the rights of Directors and other interested parties, to the
exient necessary to effect such compliance.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors of the Bank,
such corporation bas caused this instrument to be executed by its duly authorized officers effective as of
the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: _ Commerce National Bank

00301189.00C
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Amendment No. 1 to
COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK
Equity-Based Director Deferred Compensation Plan

" This Amendment No. 1 to COMMERCE NATIONAL BANK Equity-Based Director
Compensation Plan (this “Amendment™) is made as of March 28, 2008, by the Board of Directors of
Commerce National Bank (the “Bank™).

WHEREAS, the Equity-Based Director Compensation Plan (the “Plan™) currently states on page
2, in the last sentence under “Deferral Accounts, " that “All distributions will be made solely in the form
of shares of common stock,” and Section 5.6 of the Plan currently states that “... a Director’s Account
will be settled only by delivery of shares of Bank common stock to the Director on the distribution date,”
and that “No cash or other assets will be distributed to a Director or his Beneficiary under the Plan”; and

WHEREAS, these provisions do not refiect the intention of the Board of Directors in adopting the
Plan, since it was the intention of the Board that al} distributions under the Plan were to be made in cash,
and not in the form of shares of common stock; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directions of the Bank desires to correct the Plan with this
~ Amendment, effective as of this date and made applicable to all participants immediately.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby amends the Plan as follows:

1. Deferral Accounts

The last sentence of the section captioned “Deferral Accounts™ on page 2 of the Plan is
hereby amended to read as follows: “All distributions will be made solely in cash.”

‘!\3

Section 5.6 of the Plan
Section 5.6 of the Plan is hereby amended to read as follows:

" “5.6 Distributions Shall be Paid in Cash Only. Notwithstanding any provision in this Plan
to the contrary, for purposes of making any distributions under this Article V, including
distributions under Section 5.7 hereof, a Director’s account will be settled only by payment of
cash to the Director on the distribution date. No common stock or other assets will be
distributed to a Director or his Beneficiary under the Plan.”

Ratification

[#5 ]

In all other respects, the Board of Directors ratifies and confirms the Plan.

By Action of the Board of Directors:

“ Steven L. Hollsteifi
Corporate Secretary




"‘ :E. l Vawrinek, Tring, Day & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accourtants

VMALUE THE BIFFERENCE

Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Publi¢ Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the inclusion of our Report-of Independent Registered Public Aceounting
Firm -dated February 27, 2008 regarding the statements of financial condition of Commerce
National Bank as of Decernber 331, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of operations,
changes in shareholders’ equity, and cask flows for the three vears ended December 31, 2007,
2006, and 2005, in the Annual Report o Form 10-K filed with the Office of the Comptrolier of
the Currency.

.. 1 /. ~ P~
‘/ﬁwrméf / Fams, Dov 4 . LL‘P
Laguna Hills, California
March 28, 2008

25231 Paseo De-Alisiz, Suile 100 Laguns Hills, CA 92653 Tel: 948.768:0833 Fax: §46.768.8408  www.vidcpa.com

FRESNO o LAGUNA HILLS « PALO ALTD + PLEASANTON - RANCHO CROTAMONGA
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
(Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley)

I, Mark E. Simmons, President and Chief Executive Officer of Commerce National Bank, certify
that:

1. I 'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce National Bank;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure conirols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision; to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, is made known to us by others within those entities, particulariy during
the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

©) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

3. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ have disciosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the regisirant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors: '

{a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability {o record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(h) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invoives management or other
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

6. This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Bank’s registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not
subject to attestation by the Bank’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules
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of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Bank to provide only Management’s
report in this Anmual Report.

DPate: March 28, 2008
/s/ Mark E. Simmons
Mark E. Simmons
President and Chief Executive Officer

89



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
{Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley)

I, Larry V. Sorensen, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Commerce
National Bank, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce National Bank;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifving officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision; to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal
control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(3)] Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
and presented in the report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

- {d) Disclosed in this annual report any change in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors:

{(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

)] Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting.

6. This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Bank’s registered public
accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not
subject to attestation by the Bank’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules
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of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Bank to provide only Management’s
report in this Annual Report.

Date: March 28, 2008
/s/ Larry V. Sorensen
Larry V. Sorensen
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

SECTION %06 CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

The undersigned, as the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Commerce National
Bank, certify that to the best of our knowledge and belief the Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable,
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the periodic report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Commerce
National Bank at the dates and for the periods indicated. The foregoing certification is made
solely for purposes of 18 USC, Section 1350 of the United States Code and is subject to the
knowledge and willfulness qualifications contained in Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350(c).

Date: March 28, 2008 /s/ Mark E. Simmons
Mark E. Simmons
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 28, 2008 /s/ Larry V. Sorensen
Larry V. Sorensen
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
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